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Our Bus-TV telecasts a
wide variety of programmes
and advertisements to
passengers, capturing

an audience of around
4,000,000 daily.
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Our Bus-Shelters has enhanced our market Our In-Bus and Bus-Body were launched in 2009. The

share and status as one of Hong Kong'’s premier former provides both a creative platform and a means
specialist out-of-home providers. of achieving synergy for advertisers. The latter conveys
SEMNEHREFHEBEMAEENTISHE - our clients’ messages all over Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT
EERE

In Hong Kong, the Group seized the opportunity
to invest in expanding market share.

The year just ended (“FY2009”) was a notable one for the RoadShow
Group (“RoadShow” or “the Group”). The global economic meltdown
seriously impacted the advertising industry’s performance during the first
three quarters of the year in both Hong Kong and Mainland China. In the
former, the Group seized the opportunity to invest in expanding market
share. In the latter, regrettably, prudent provision has had to be made for
the fiscal year.

Although the advertising industry was amongst the hardest hit by the
global economic downturn, RoadShow managed to achieve an encouraging
HK$194.1 million in media revenues in Hong Kong, representing growth
of 37% over the HK$141.6 million recorded in FY2008. With some
4,800 buses equipped with our proprietary Bus-TV system and a daily
audience of 4,000,000, RoadShow is now the dominant player in Hong
Kong’s franchised bus advertising market. The securing of two additional
advertising platforms has further strengthened that position.

Under a new Licence Agreement with The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited (“KMB”), the Group has been granted exclusive agency
rights to handle media sales for around 66% of all bus exteriors in

Hong Kong. At the same time, under a separate Licence Agreement
from KMB, the Group has been granted exclusive agency rights to sell
advertising in the interiors of the same fleet. We are confident that our
investments in these new businesses will expand the Group’s revenue
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base. By integrating the three platforms — Bus-TV (MMOB), In-Bus and
Bus-Body — we will be able to offer a full range of customised packages to
advertisers. Together with our co-management of advertising space at
bus shelters, these new businesses should cement our position as the
Hong Kong's leader in the out-of-home advertising sector.

The Group plans significant new capital investment in up-grading the
technology of its MMOB platform. Work on this should be completed by
the third quarter of 2010 and will further enhance our competitive edge.

In the Mainland, the impact of the economic recession has been more
acutely felt, particularly in the TV drama sector. In this climate, accounts
receivable have grown rapidly. At the same time, competition from

an increasing number of programme content providers, including TV
stations, has become much fiercer than previously. The Group has,
therefore, felt it prudent to make provision in relation to both areas.

Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$223.1 million, representing an increase of 21%
over the previous year. The profit attributable to shareholders of

the Company was HK$14.0 million in 2009, representing a decrease

of 67% compared with HK$42.6 million in 2008. Profit attributable

to shareholders decreased mainly due to decreases in the Group’s

other revenue and other net income as well as a loss has been shared

in its associate.
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

EEHRE

The Group will be well-placed to increase
advertising revenues during the up-swing.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HK1.41 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: HK5.00 cents
per share). This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current

year’s profit.

Prospects

As at the end of FY2009, although the global economic environment
remains uncertain, Hong Kong's economic growth has begun to pick up.
We are therefore cautiously optimistic that the advertising industry will
continue its slow but steady recovery from last year’s trough. As a result of
the strategic investments made in 2009 and planned for 2010, the Group
will be well-placed to increase advertising revenues during the up-swing.
The Group’s solid financial strength also means that it is well-positioned to
capitalise on new opportunities that may arise to increase its

market share.
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Appreciation

We know that RoadShow’s success depends on our experienced
professionals. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our staff
for their dedication and invaluable contribution to the business during the
year. We are confident about their continued support to RoadShow.

My special thanks to the Audit Committee, chaired by Dr Eric Li Ka
Cheung and with Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Ms Winnie Ng, Mr Yung Wing
Chung and Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung as members, for their
commendable work during the year.

| also sincerely appreciate the valuable contributions of my fellow
directors, in particular the Managing Director, Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang, to
the Group’s commendable performance during the year.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
Chairman
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MANAGING
DIRECTOR’S
REPORT
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The ultimate aim was to not only attract and
inform audiences but also earn and retain the
loyalty of leading brands and advertisers.

As the Chairman has noted, 2009 was a notable year for the RoadShow
Group (“RoadShow” or “the Group”), with sustained growth across our core
business despite very tough market conditions, particularly in the Mainland.

In the Hong Kong media market, we were able to realise a number of key
objectives and made steady progress in our drive to build up an integrated
out-of-home (“O0H") platform. The ultimate aim was to not only attract and
inform audiences but also earn and retain the loyalty of leading brands and
advertisers. Following our successful securing of the exclusive Bus-Body
Media Agency Licence from KMB in late 2009, we will take our unrivalled
expertise in operating a powerful moving billboard medium to the next level.
In acting as agent for Hong Kong's largest bus fleet, the Group will enjoy far
more than just extended impact and far greater reach. We will be able to
deliver measurable economy of scale benefits for international advertisers
and agencies booking group deals.

As a result of these achievements, the Group’s turnover has increase from
HK$148.4 million in FY2008 to HK$196.3 million in FY2009. Despite

a significant drop in other income over figures for FY2008, RoadShow’s
operational profit remained at a healthy level of HK$36.8 million (FY2008:
HK$42.9 million). The FY2009 figure includes a reduction in interest
income and an absence of exchange gain. These positive developments
reflect the Group’s strength across its core competencies and excellent
ability in capitalising on opportunities and facing future challenges.

During the year just ended, AdSociety Daye Advertising Company Limited
(“Daye”), our joint-venture with The People’s Daily in the PRC and Arvato
Services Miinchen GMBH (“Arvato”) from Germany, was particularly hard
hit by harsh economic conditions, and incurred losses for the first time.
Ultimately, major marketers’ tightened advertising spending also resulted in
a sharp cut in the sponsorship of large-scale TV dramas. This decline was
further exacerbated by many major TV stations’ decision to produce drama
series in-house. These developments resulted in an extension of Daye’s
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payback periods and an accompanying increase in our accounts receivable.
During a shareholders’ meeting in mid-2009, a consensus was reached
regarding the further refining of Daye’s operational strategies. Specific steps
taken have included a reduction in the production of large-scale TV drama
series as well as tightening of credit policies.

Following the completion of the second subscription by Arvato on 28
September 2009, the Group’s share in Daye was further diluted to 32.7%,
the Group was no longer in a position to have any significant control in Daye.
The Group will cautiously re-assess its investment in this associate.

To this end, any provision we make for the programme library and some of
its long-outstanding debts would be fully consistent with our long tradition of
prudent practice. The Group’s management will closely monitor the progress
of the fine tuned business strategies for formulating the approach to the
challenge ahead.

Looking Forward

While global economic uncertainties remain, RoadShow’s management is
cautiously optimistic about the success of its future plans for both the Hong
Kong and PRC markets. To reward all shareholders for their continued loyal
support and maintain a stable dividend policy, we will therefore continue to
focus on the development of our core businesses and operations.

RoadShow'’s steady progress during the year just ended has largely been

the result of the shrewd guidance we have received from our Board and the
professionalism and dedication of our staff. | would like to place on record my
sincere appreciation of everyone who has contributed to our sustained growth.

Alex MO Tik Sang

Managing Director
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OPERATIONAL
REVIEW
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Despite tough conditions in the

Hong Kong media market, FY2009
saw RoadShow realise a number of key
objectives and make steady progress
In its drive to build up an integrated
out-of-home (“O0H") platform.

“ETAFUREE - BEEBERTS
BERE  BRANEEESEEEAE
LS HA - RILEA P
([F5]) Fa -




Our upgraded in-bus LCD units clearly remain an attractive media buy for ad
SERREBTANRREBAG  RBEE  HESEMs EAKERLNEE

Bus-TV (MMOB)

The Group’s Bus-TV (MMOB) business includes the broadcasting of
tailor-made programmes and advertisements, the producing and sourcing
of programme content, and the marketing and selling of air time.

Our MMOB system currently deploys around 20,000 LCD units in buses
and telecasts a wide variety of programmes and advertisements to
passengers on a daily basis. At present, approximately 4,800 buses from
Kowloon Motor Bus (“KMB™), Citybus and New World First Bus carry our
content. It is estimated that these messages have an audience of around
4,000,000 daily.

Our in-bus LCD units were upgraded in 2008 in order to enhance our
system. They clearly remain an attractive media buy for advertisers who
value their extensive coverage across such a large daily audience base.

In-Bus (Bus Interior)

Inaugurated in February 2009, In-Bus was a new business for RoadShow.

The Group entered into bus interior advertising licence agreements with
KMB in February and August 2009 respectively. These licences covered
the soliciting of advertising for the interior advertising spaces of all KMB
transit vehicles. The prior agreement with KMB expired on 31 October
2009, the newly granted licence will continue until 31 October 2014.

Gratifyingly, local advertisers have increased their use of In-Bus both as a
creative platform and a means of achieving synergy with other RoadShow
media. Ultimately, no media enables advertisers to better satisfy their
desire for ‘optimal eyeball management with minimised eyeball conflict’
in bus interiors than MMOB. In leveraging both bus interior decorations
and MMOB’s customised TV segments, brand managers can enjoy a
genuinely ‘Win-Win’ situation.
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Bus-Body was launched in November 2009.
BETtEHIIMNIEREEBER_STNF+—HAES -

Bus-Body (Bus Exterior)

Another new business initiative for the Group, Bus-Body was launched

in November 2009. The new division was started when KMB granted
RoadShow a bus exterior advertising licence agreement covering exclusive
rights to market, display and maintain advertisements on its transit
vehicles’ exterior spaces for three years. Originally not scheduled to end
until 31 October 2012, the licence can be extended for a further two
years until 31 October 2014.

The commencement of the new bus exterior advertising arrangement
with KMB has resulted in an acceleration of both the Group’s business
momentum and market share. At present, bus exteriors carrying our
advertising messages account for around 66% of all franchised buses in
Hong Kong.

Bus-Body (BB &4ME)
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Bus-Shelters has enhanced our market share and status as one of Hong Kong’s premier specialist out-of-home providers.
ErREFEBENASENTSHME  E2ERAREREBER —MEEFINESHERHBZMNA -

Bus-Shelters

Our Bus-Shelters business operated with JCDecaux Texon Limited has
been operational since 2001. This sector was awarded an exclusive
licence for media sales agency and management rights in respect of the
selected bus shelters in 2008 lasting until 31 July 2012.

In FY2009, our Bus-Shelters sector was not only a source of revenue and
profits, but also enhanced our market share and status as one of Hong
Kong’s premier specialist OOH providers.

Integrated Marketing Services

Last year saw this sector experience a substantial, three-fold increase
in demand for its services. Key customers included advertisers in
event management and production, advertising production, creative
development and public relations, etc.
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Unigue Programming

RoadShow meticulously tailors Bus-TV (MMOB) content covering culture,
lifestyle, entertainment and news. Such a uniquely creative, informative
and entertaining blend has both gained and sustained the interest and
awareness of travelers across Hong Kong.

In FY2009, we pioneered a variety of special programmes with the

following key objectives:

e To educate travelers about current affairs, we introduced a ‘RoadShow
Forum’, magazine programme focusing on Hong Kong lifestyles,
current affairs and community issues. During each show, individual
topics are discussed by prominent guests offering contrasting
viewpoints.

e To enrich Hong Kong’s artistic and cultural side ahead of the opening
of the West Kowloon Cultural District, we produced series called
‘RoadShow Stage’ and ‘Dramatic Criticism’. Offering informative
insights into arts and culture, both shows are designed to stimulate
bus passengers’ interest in this sphere of life.
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e To educate our audience about global warming’s serious implications,
we worked closely with the Hong Kong Observatory to produce
a series of special programmes called ‘Relief 16 Degrees’. The
ultimate aim was to motivate local people to play a more active role
in safeguarding the environment for future generations. The shows
subsequently received excellent feedback from the market and were
keenly supported by various influential sponsors.

The coming year will see the Group continue to enrich and diversify

its programme content. To this end, we plan to increase both in-house
production as well as collaborate with still more regional and local content
providers. Plans are also in place to increase our ratio of branded content
and act as a media partner for concerts, movies and other high-impact
mainstream events.
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The Group will continue to enrich and diversify
its programme content. To this end, we plan
to increase both in-house production as well
as collaborate with still more regional and local

content providers.
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We aired appeals from several deserving local organisations.

A5 A - BT - R EE T

Good corporate citizenship

Last year marked the seventh consecutive year RoadShow has received
a coveted Caring Company Award from the Hong Kong Council

of Social Services. Eager to give back to the local community, the
Group enthusiastically supports many worthy charities and non-profit
organisations by pro-bono broadcasting of community service messages
and charity appeals via Bus-TV. In FY2009, we aired appeals from
several deserving local organisations. In addition to Queen Elizabeth
Hospital, HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions, Youth Hostel Fund Raising,
they included Hong Kong Yagathon 2009. We also participated in many
charity and fund-raising events and encouraged our staff to participate
in the Community Chest’s ‘Dress Special Day’. During the year ahead,
RoadShow will continue to deliver on its commitment to good corporate
citizenship by supporting civic education and producing informative and
educational programmes.

People

The ability of RoadShow’s people to understand and anticipate their
customers’ needs has always given the Group a major advantage.
Ultimately, it is crucial for us to develop and retain talented individuals
because such people will ensure we can retain our leading position.
During the year just ended, we not only recruited new talent but also
provided training to enhance the quality and efficiency of our existing
staff. In 2010 and beyond, we will continue to foster the nurturing culture
that will enable our team to face every new challenge with confidence.
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
B HE

For The Year Ended 31 December
HE+_-_A=1t—HILEFE

Unit

E=Kiv) 2009 2008
Total operating revenue HK$ million 223.1 184.0
KEW A BT BEBEETT
Profit before taxation HK$ million 22.7 56.8
B 5t Al 22 K BEBEET
Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 14.0 42.6
PR FEAE B A BEEET
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation HK$ million 42.1 81.3
and amortisation expenses (“EBITDA”) BEBRET
HRAE - HIE - TERBHERA
@ ( TEBITDA] )
Basic earnings per share HK cents 141 4.27
BIRERE A AL
Proposed final dividend per share HK cents 141 5.00
ERIRETRRERE Al
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 803.0 842.1
PRR (L AR BEBRETT
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The Group manages its business by the following geographical areas: REBZATHEEBRHER

Hong Kong : Provision of media sales and management services B CORMEREEREERS
Mainland China : Provision of media sales and management services REIRRE - REERBIHERERRE

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
gE TR ApE #ct

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 H
BT ERTT BT B%TT BETr B

2008
K$'000
BT

Revenue from external customers 2R B9MEPEFEMA 194,082 141,593 2,279 6,819 196,361 148412

Other revenue and other net income  EL AU A Rz B U 8 5 48 8,553 5,456 2,302 327 10,855 5,783
Inter-segment revenue DEPEUA — — — — — —
Reportable segment revenue 2R IWA 202,635 147,049 4,581 7146 207,216 154,195
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ZH{ 2 EHRA (FiE) 40,746 25291 (21,084) 12,367 19,662 37,658
Other revenue and other net income LA B2 EL A U 355 48 15,923 29,777
Finance costs BB A — (300)
Unallocated head office and KPP EERER N

corporate expenses TETH (12,911) (10,351)
Profit before taxation PR A & A 22,674 56,784
Income tax FTiSH (4,454)  (7,062)
Profit for the year REEBA 18,220 49,722
Attributable to: G0 ¢
Equity shareholders of the Company ZXA RIAZER 14,016 42615
Minority interests DER R 4,204 7,107
Profit for the year REEBA 18,220 49,722
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Results

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$223.1 million, representing an increase of
21% over the previous year. The profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company was HK$14.0 million in 2009, representing a decrease
of 67% compared with HK$42.6 million in 2008. Profit attributable to
shareholders decreased mainly due to decreases in the Group’s other
revenue and other net income as well as a loss has been shared in its
associate. The Group continues to maintain a strong financial position
with bank deposits and cash of HK$447.9 million as at 31 December
2009 (2008: HK$533.9 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported a total
operating revenue of HK$223.1 million, comprising HK$196.3 million
from the media sales services and management business as well as
HK$26.8 million from other revenue and other net income. Revenue
from media sales services and management business generated from the
Hong Kong and Mainland China operations accounted for approximately
99% and 1% of the Group’s turnover respectively. Revenue generated
from media sales services and management business of the Hong Kong
operations was HK$194.1 million in 2009 compared with HK$141.6
million in 2008, while that generated from our Mainland China operations
was HK$2.2 million in 2009 compared with HK$6.8 million in 2008.

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses increased by HK$45.3 million, from
HK$141.0 million to HK$186.3 million, due to the operation of the new
bus interior and exterior advertising businesses which commenced in
February and November of the year respectively.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK1.41 cents per share
(2008: HK5.00 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December 2009.
This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current year’s profit.

HE_ZTZAF+_A=+—BLEFE X«
EESEE U A RS 223,100,0007T
REFEN21% - RRARBRER-_ZTNE
ZEIE BT AEH 14,000,000 ' B -TF
NEH B 42 600,0007TH 2 67% © P fE
EBFRD  EZHRAEEEMKRARE
MR EFBAEFTRYD - AREDHERBE R
RIMEEITER - NEEEEKIBEENEIR
R RZETAE+ A=+ BHRTT
BFERRIR & ABEA447,900,000T (Z2Z
S\ : 5#533,900,0007T)

VPN

HE _ZTZAF+-_A=+—BUIEE K
LB E AR E223,100,0007T
& B 1196,300,0007T /5 R B a2 g
RIS R ERER - B 26,800,0007T 8
REEMUBA R EA R FRE - AR
PR K BE 4 S TS P A O R RS M &5 AR 7S
REBREBRADNEREEEXEY
9% K1% - REBRZZTTNFNEBE
BHERBLERESMEENRA BB
194,100,0007T @ ¥t — T T \F B BB
141,600,0007T » ] 28 £ B 50 A B K B ) %
U A B B7E#2 200,0007T @ H, — T
J\E 8 A78%6,800,0007T °

g3t

REB MK ERMER141,000,0007T 1%

707 #45,300,0007C % 7% # 186,300,000 T -
TERRHELERASBRESIINBESED
DRRAEE-_ART+—ARREE -

BB
EREARBE—_TTAFt-_A=1—H
HFEERERBRESSRAEE 1411 (=F
ZNE  GRBES.000L) - REXRRERF
EEMH)100% e



Cash Flow

In 2009, the cash generated from the operations of the Group was
HK$7.2 million (2008: used in operations HK$1.9 million). Payment for
capital expenditure in 2009 amounted to HK$11.0 million (2008: HK$0.4
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 is set out on pages 70 to 71 of this Annual
Report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s bank deposits and cash amounted to
HK$447.9 million (2008: HK$533.9 million), denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi. Apart from providing working capital to
support its media sales and management business, the Group maintains
a strong cash position to meet potential needs for business expansion and
development.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank borrowings to
the total share capital and reserves of the Group was 0% at 31 December
2009 and 2008.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had net current assets of HK$541.3
million (2008: HK$552.2 million) and total assets of HK$858.9 million
(2008: HK$894.7 million).

The Group’s cash needs are primarily for working capital and to support
its media sales business. At 31 December 2009, the Group had stand-by
banking facilities totalling HK$50.0 million (2008: HK$50.0 million).

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2009, bank deposits of HK$51.2 million (2008: HK$Nil)
was pledged to secure certain bank guarantees issued by the subsidiaries
of the Company to fellow subsidiaries regarding their due performance
and payment under certain licence agreements between the subsidiaries
of the Company and the fellow subsidiaries.

PN
Eﬁi/ﬂiﬁi

—ETDNEFR - ARERELLEHNES
RBBET7,200,000C (ZZTZENF « ARE
EEEM S AB]1,900,000T ) o =F
TNEFENEARFAST AB11,000,000T (=
T\ - #%400,0007T) $§E.ﬁ§
ZEENFFT AT —HILEFENGS
ERERFNANFRETOEEET1E °

mENE & RVBEIR

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H  RTEEMIE
TEFREE ABEE447 900,000 (=F
T\ : 5%533,900,0007T)  PAEHE -
ELRARBEAEN -BRIEEREBESIUL
SFHMEREHEE NEIERKIN - REBE R
BEMNRSKIAENEBEEREENE

ZERNFER-FBTENF+Z H +*
EI AEEYL EAEMRITER Z2FN
FER-ZEENET-_A=1+—8" ﬁﬁi‘éﬁ
E (RRTEFEAKSERALFERT R
BHLLE) B0% °

“EEAFE+-_A=+—8  AEEMNR
B EEFEAPBE541,300,000T (ZFF
J\E : B#552,200,0007T) - MmEEMAE
A7S#858,900,000t (ZEEN\GF @ B
894,700,0007T)

rEENReHFEFTERAELEES LY
BHEBHEEEK RZTTNF+=A

=+—B  AEEMERETEEREEAL

A7E#50,000,000T (ZEZENF  BE
50,000,0007T) -

BEER
RZBEZNF+ZA=+—8 " &%
51 200,000 (ZZEZENF : BEZTT) B
THEREEF - ERRATNBRARHE
.J@ﬁ&?zﬁﬁiﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬂﬁm%
TR TR EFRR R B R FED
B TRITEROER
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Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi. During
the year, there was no material fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong
Kong Dollars to Renminbi and US Dollars. The Group did not engage in
any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial instruments
to hedge its balance sheet exposure in 2009. At 31 December 2009, the
proceeds from the Global Offering and the exercise of an over-allotment
option by the underwriters on 18 July 2001, which had not been utilised,
were placed into bank deposits.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2009 amounted

to HK$11.0 million (2008: HK$0.4 million). The breakdown of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in note 13 to the financial statements on
pages 64 to 137 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding and not provided for in the financial
statements of the Group at 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$173.0
million (2008: HK$173.0 million), which is mainly for the upgrade of the
existing MMOB system for the MMOB business. The commitments are to
be financed by bank borrowings and/or internal resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2009 and 2008.

Accounting Standards and Policies

The financial statements set out on pages 64 to 137 have been prepared
in accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”), all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2009, the Group had 95 full-time employees in Hong
Kong and 11 full-time employees in Mainland China. The Group has
adopted a share option scheme, details of which are contained in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” as described on page 58 of
this Annual Report.

FEE 5 B [ e K% AR 1 0

AEBENEREERRHTENEBE X1
RARBREL - R BELARENE
THERYEERNRY - R-TZNF - K
SEYEETEATETRLRY - TEETE
THERTANMEEEABRAR - R
ZT-FLAT/\HBBEHBEERBHD
1T ABRR B A 12 in R E) R RV FTS SRIE R —
ETNFT_A=+—HEFERITER -

BRI M EARAEYE
REBR-_ZTNFAEENELRAL A
75%11,000,000C (ZZEENGF « B
400,0007T) ° FTEAE AR MAMEER
BN AFRFECABEF13TENI B HREN
130

R-ZZERE+-_A=1+—B  HABTE
W AR A ER B B B 3 R A B A0 B AN
AE#173,000,0000C (ZTT)N\F @ B
173,000,0007T) ' *E2ARREZEE
EBIEARBRDZEB RS - BEARRER
IRITER R, A EERH NI EREN -

SRBE

R-FTNFR-FENFT-A=+—
A ARELEIHEALABE
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HNFEOAEEF13TEMN B HRRIIIRIERE
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B BRARGFRAUREE CARERD)
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Z2RES - AEECRM —IABREE
HEFBHNAFHRESSA [HREE

—&-



-

Connected Transactions BER S

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had the following BE-_TTAE+ _A=+—HLEFE &
continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out below. SEAETRRERER S BB
T o

The Group entered into the transactions with the connected parties
in 2009 as set out below. The transactions constitute continuing AEBR _ZTAFHERMBEATET AR
connected transactions which are subject to reporting, announcement % o RELTRAUEVIAT  ZEXHBEK
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter SEWERS WABTHRR  /MAERBY
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transactions listed below PRERALERRE « TR HHFED RIS RN
were disclosed in the Circulars of the Company dated 24 February 2009 ARBAR_ZFZNF_A-_tHAR_ZFZT
and 17 September 2009 respectively, and were approved at the special NEAATEHTENBRIARE - X755
general meetings by the independent shareholders on 17 March 2009 RZZBZNF=ZA+ELARZZZNAETA
and 9 October 2009 respectively. NBRRERFRI RS EBE 7 RRE -

(i) Name of Nature of transaction HK$’000 Cap amount approved
connected parties RHMHE BT by the independent
HEALER shareholders

LSBT AR R AL
ERERE
HK$'000
R
(1) The Kowloon Motor Licence fee payable by RoadShow Media Limited 12,300 20,300
Bus Company (1933) = (“RoadShow Media”) (Note 2) to KMB in relation to the
Limited (“KMB™) grant of a licence by KMB for soliciting advertising
(Note 1) business in respect of the interior panels of the bus
NEET (—N==) body of the KMB buses
?mﬁi%)ﬂ C(Thel) RoadShow Media Limited ([RoadShow Media | )
E2) RAEREBRABE T ERAESA
EITESEBNETERNEZNRETE
(2) KMB Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited (Note 3) to 9,166 13,000
=) KMB in relation to the grant of a licence by KMB for
the exclusive right to market, display and maintain
advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies of
the KMB buses
Bus Power Limited (#z3) SAEREBREHEE - BT
RESEENEFIINIRESUNBRIFTERNES
AT E

Note Bt 5

1. KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited 1. NEAEHBBEFZEEAERAT ( [#:@] ) /O
(“TIH"). HEEEMBAR -

RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 2. RoadShow Media BN A A EE 2 EHE
Bus Power Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. A
3. Bus Power Limited BARBIMEE 2 A B
NG
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The Group entered into the transactions with the connected parties

in 2008 as set out below. The transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions which are subject to reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transactions listed below
were disclosed in the Circular of the Company dated 28 November 2008
and were approved at the special general meeting by the independent

shareholders on 15 December 2008.

(ii) Name of
connected parties
BEATER

Nature of transaction

HK$'000
BT T

REERZZT )\ FHEAEATETTRR
Z o BELTHRAUFE14AE
BERBRS  WEBTHR  AMREBY
BREBENIRTE - THRZHFHBERAEAR
ARZEENFE+—A T NBHENEX
WEE - TR N\F+_A+HANK
REFRIAS LB AR AL -

P ZERFEK

Cap amount approved
by the independent
shareholders

1B AR AR

EReHE
HK$'000

BEFT

(3) KMB Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited (“Bus 13,788 15,000
Al Focus”) (Note 4) to KMB in connection with the
provision of media sales services for transit vehicle
shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus Limited ( [Bus Focus] ) (Miz4) &AL
BEENREERFE=IREFEHEERBRANE
ST ER B
(4) JCDecaux Texon Management fee payable by Bus Focus to JCDecaux 16,500 18,000
Limited (“JCDecaux Texon in connection with the provision of media sales
Texon”) services for transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB
(Note 5) (K3t 5) Bus Focus 3t & LB A & &8 B & (x5 = IR (LK 2
$HE fR7E A JCDecaux Texon X i H) B I8 &
(5) JCDecaux Texon Shortfall of guaranteed rental receivable by Bus 19,774 46,400

Focus in connection with the provision of media sales
services for transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus i LA K BB B i (R B =12 (I B2 65
ERGHEKRERSHTTE

Note:

4. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct
40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL”). IPL is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of JCDecaux Texon International Limited (“JCDecaux TIL").

5. JCDecaux Texon is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux TIL.

> =

Bus Focus BARQRIMEHEAFG60%
EXMKBAR - ¥ H A Immense Prestige
Limited ( [IPL] ) BERER40%ERAHE
A7) o IPL AJCDecaux Texon International

Limited ( [JCDecaux TIL] ) BWZEMBE A -
5. JCDecaux Texon & JCDecaux TIL 92 & KB

ACI



The Group entered into the transactions with the connected parties REER-_ZETLFHBAEATET AR

in 2007 as set out below. The transactions constitute continuing 5o BIBELMBRAF4AE  ZERHHEK

connected transactions which are subject to reporting, announcement BEBERERS - WABSTHS - A REBL

and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter RESENFE - THRFNFBEREAR

14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transactions listed below ARZZEELF+—AZ+—HBHEBENBEE

were disclosed in the Circular of the Company dated 21 November 2007 WEE - TR -ZZTLF A TARKRE
and were approved at the special general meeting by the independent FRIRE FEBURERRE - TRE(7)EFR
shareholders on 10 December 2007. The transaction mentioned in MR ZERFTNERFLIE AZTTNF
item (7) below has been terminated by both parties with effect from +—A—BEE®-

1 November 2009.

(i) Name of
connected parties
BREA LB

(6) KMB
nE

Nature of transaction HK$'000 Cap amount approved
RHME BEET T by the independent
shareholders

I AR AR

FREE

AR
HK$'000
BEFT

Licence fee and service charges payable by 22,604 41,000
RoadShow Media to KMB in connection with the
granting of an exclusive licence to conduct MMOB
Advertising on KMB's transit vehicles fitted with
the MMOB broadcasting system

RoadShow Media R BRFFREXARD Z K
BERZGMNERESH LETRBZERESH
NEX MR E KRG &

(7) KMB Public Bus
Services Holdings
Limited (“KMBPBS”)
(Note 6) (FffsE 6)

Service fee payable by KMBPBS to RoadShow 13,339 20,000
Media in connection with the provision of media
sales management and administrative services by
RoadShow Media in relation to advertising spaces
located at the exterior panels of KMB’s transit
vehicles

KMBPBS #t RoadShow Media AN B EEHHE -5
HONEIRAL A E S MR KB S E BB RITBURIS A
RoadShow Media 3% {89 IR &

6. KMBPBS is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH. 6. KMBPBS REEMMEZEMBAR -
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Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (i) and (iii) above,
which were entered into by the Group, are:

e inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

e on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

e in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

In addition, the independent auditors of the Company (the “External
Auditors”) confirmed that in respect of the continuing connected
transactions as set out in (i), (i) and (iii) above:

e the continuing connected transactions were approved by the Board;

e there were agreements in place governing the continuing connected
transactions and the prices charged for all of the transactions were in
accordance with the pricing terms set out in the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

e the aggregate dollar amount of the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2009 did not exceed the respective
caps disclosed in previous announcements made by the Company in
respect of each of the continuing connected transactions.

Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on the Stock Exchange, the Group has
utilised approximately HK$361.9 million for the development of, and

the purchase of equipment for use in, the MMOB business and for the
acquisition of complementary businesses in Mainland China. The balance
of the proceeds, which has not been utilised, has been deposited with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

BIIERITERD BN L () - (i) & (i)

BEAREEMETORFERERS - WHERL

ERXH7

e RAKEEAER MEBBERIIL

o B MEEKRIIETHBERIRHTE L
F-EHYABUE=FRYE (RBEREB
RE) BERETY : &

e MAEMMEAERRE AKFBATAE
REAARREIRENEERNZ -

BEAN - RRR OB AZEA ( [INEZS

B ) Eattit (i)~ (i) (i) BOEBER

ER SR

e EFEEMARZTHERERS

e UERBEBRERSHDIZBMEMERR
FIERSMBEMOBRIIERREZER
S 8B 1H s N ETEA E B R E

e HEZZZTNFT-A=+—RHItHF
B REBAEXFINLELELRBAR
RARBALNEMEENSHERER
S LIRE%E -

P FIA MR &
BEABNERZN EHIAR  AEERER
MBEEREBLRBERDZHRRE - U
RUERBEAENREEXEMEBLEER
361,900,0007T © i AR E) A Y FT1S FRIEER AR
EFARBHERITHERFR -



Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed strong emphasis on maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and believes good corporate
governance provides a solid and sound framework to assist the Directors
in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities to the Group. The Group’s
standards of corporate governance ensure that the Group’s corporate
decision-making process, internal controls, disclosure of information
and communication with shareholders is conducted in accordance with
sound management practices and in full compliance with the regulatory
standards. The Corporate Governance Report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 is set out on pages 41 to 52 of this Annual
Report.

BEES
REBZFR-—BHNRBRKENLEE
B WARERENECEEREEREMmMES
WIER NMENEEAAEEBTHRER
BiE - REBMEEEAKT  BRASEE
MEERRER  NIEE BREBEUR
HRFENEBIFTEEEERER  UHxS
BTEERE - ASEBE_TTNF+Z
A=Z+—ALFENGEERRSHNAE
WMEBANBEEEL2E °
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PROFILES OF
DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEBNEE

ABENT

Directors &=

Dr John

CHAN Cho Chak
BRIEEE T APHL
Chairman

EfE

GBS, JP, DBA (Hon),
DSocSc (Hon), BA,
DipMS, CCMI, FCILT,
FHKloD

YUNG Wing Chung
BKE

Deputy Chairman
BlEE

Aged 66, Dr Chan has been the Chairman of the Company since 15 January 2001. He is a Non-
executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH"). He previously served as
Managing Director of TIH and as Managing Director and later Senior Executive Director of The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company Limited. He is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited and Guangdong Investment
Limited. Dr Chan held many positions in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to 1978 and from
1980 to 1993, the key ones of which included Private Secretary to the Governor, Deputy Secretary
(General Duties), Director of Information Services, Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for Trade and
Industry and Secretary for Education and Manpower. Dr Chan also served as Executive Director
and General Manager of Sun Hung Kai Finance Company Limited from 1978 to 1980. Dr Chan is
Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club, Chairman of the Court of the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and a Vice Patron of the Community Chest.

ANTRE - RELTE —_TE—F-A+TARER/ARATLE - BREHBREERARIA ( [#E] )
FHRTES - MBEHBESK  UEENAEEL (—h==) ER2A ([AR] ) REEELAR
RAIBERMRBEITES - RELTABERTERAAKEFKEFRARNBIIFNTES - R
ITR—NAARNEEE-NAENFR-NANZFE-AN=ZFREBRRBERS - SEEEEBLARE
BlEH%A  BAMERER  BFPRA - THARMERANGERNSER - RELIN -t N\FE—
NNTEREERFTBENBERATDNTEERALE - RBLT/ATEEFTELE BEMRKE
BEHZEEXIERER AR BEIER

Aged 63. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November 2008. He is a Corporate
Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also serves as a Non-Executive Director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director and an Alternate Director to Mr
Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of US| Holdings Limited, Director of YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business
Aviation Centre Limited, River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company Limited and
Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited, and as an Alternate Director to Mr Raymond
Kwok Ping Luen of Transport International Holdings Limited. Prior to his joining Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung had many years of working experience with a U.S. Bank in
various managerial positions in Hong Kong and the United States.

ANTZH e REEA-ZT N\FT—A-THRARDGES - thANMEEMEZRRERARNAABE
B b MERHEBENEEERARINENTES  SHEREEFRARKIENITES KR
ARRITES - —HBRAE  EEEAMEFRLERAR - River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd. « M &Rt
BERARRKSEEFLARARNES  UARBBBRERERARESDREEENRITES -
R—ANAFNMATEEHNEZEREGBR AR DEEER—REEARTIEZF  GERITNEER
EEMNZIEER ©



Winnie NG
EAN

Founder and
Deputy Chairman
N e

BA, MBA (Chicago),
MPA (Harvard), FCIM,
CMILT, MHKloD

——
J -
Alex MO Tik Sang
EEHE

Managing Director

Aged 46. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been a Director since its inception. She is also
a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited,
and Long Win Bus Company Limited. Ms Ng won the Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur
Award in 2003, was named one of China’s One Hundred Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs and a
Mason Fellow of Harvard University in 2006, and was the Caring Heart Award recipient in 2009. She
founded and spearheaded listing of this multi-media company, which business model has been adopted
by many companies in HK, China and over the world.

Active in public service, she is Director of Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre; Member of Hong
Kong Tourism Board; Director of HK Cyberport; Director of HK Sports Institute; Member of Equal
Opportunities Commission; Council Member of Better HK Foundation; Executive Committee Member
of HK Council of Social Service; Director of Agency for Volunteer Service; PR Committee Member of
Community Chest; Hospital Governing Committee Member of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk
Hospital; Hospital Governing Committee Member of Queen Elizabeth Hospital, and Advisory Board
Member of Habitat for Humanity China. Ms Ng is also Vice Chairman of Council of China’s Foreign
Trade, China Council for Promotion of International Trade and Vice Board Chairman of Council of
World Market, Shanghai Foreign Economic Relation & Trade Commission.

Ms Ng is sister of Mr Anthony Ng, Director of the Company and also an alternate director to Mr
Anthony Ng. Ms Ng holds an MBA degree from the University of Chicago and an MPA degree from
Harvard University.

M+7R5% « AETARRRAEIMA - BRIPFHLERARBES - i METHBRRERERLR - LER
T (—N=2) BRARIKEECLTARARES - MRITN T =FEIMBETNBEREATFLER
R RZETRFRERTE AR AL R EERRERFHAEZR FMason Fellow : KRR ZZEZNFEF
Caring Heart#18 - thAIJHERZHR AR - WHEKDNEBMRAAKF LT - EREEXTARE -
At Fo t SRS A AR 2K

ARTHOE GRS - wASEHAHLESR FEREZRRKE  BEHBEEERKE - BER
EERES TEHSZERRE AEAREHESEEERE FELSRBEBSHTEESEE -
EBRTHERRBES BELRSARMARZE SRS BEEBRMESEREARZESKE  FHY
RERELAZEEXERTECAREBHEHRHNEZESEE - ARENATEBKRESREST S &
PRI ESEZGEEERE LTI EE SRR EREMSEERRIEER -

BRERAARERMAERENH I REARTESR - MFAEZNTFABTHERRRHERABLRAITH
PR -

Aged 44. Mr Mo has been a Director of the Company since 15 April 2008. With more than twenty
years of extensive experience in advertising, marketing and the media field, Mr Mo possesses
integrated experience in multiple disciplines of the communications industry having held management
responsibilities in the past fourteen years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Mo held a senior position in a
leading media group for Greater China.

WO+ - ERER_ZTENFOATARERARAIES - ERERNES  MEEERERITERES
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Dr Carlye

Wai-Ling TSUI
HRERBELTAFEHL
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BUIERTES

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf,
BA(Econ), FHKIoD,
FBCS, CITP, FHKIE,
HonFACE, PDipCD

- A

Dr Eric

LI Ka Cheung
TRPFH/LAFHL
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BYUIFRNTES

GBS, OBE, JP, LLD,
DSocSc, BA,

FCPA (Practising),

Hon HKAT, FCA,

FCPA (Aust.), FCIS

Aged 62. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. She is the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution

of Engineers, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The British Computer Society, Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong Association for Computer Education and Chartered Information Technology
Professional. Dr Tsui is the holder of Professional Diploma on Corporate Governance and Directorship.
A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a Member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)

and Deputy Chairman of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited. She was formerly

a Wan Chai District Councillor, a Councillor of Urban Council and Provisional Urban Council and a
member of Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. She
is an Independent Non-Executive Director of AXA Financial Services Trustees Limited and was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited (1175).
She was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons in Hong Kong 1981 and awarded IT
Achiever of the Year 1992, Member of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1997, Bronze
Bauhinia Star 2003 and the Ken Goulding Award for the most outstanding professional doctorate of
Middlesex University 2007.

TR o BRBELE T FNA-BAERARAIER - MATEESTBEMITHES - i EXE
REME BELIRMEE FREFRGNAFAEMESNEREE FEEHHBARENRERLR
FRIEAMBRERAL - FELHE [EXEALESTERR] - HFELFARTHEL  RBELHFZ
BERBENREAEBPEMERERARBER - wBTEFREHE  ITRRKERTERE#E
LEREBEERKE - AR BTEBEGELF - IR SRHEMRIEXERATELIERNTE
= NEABRLRMRBERER AT (M75)MBIUIFATES - MR — NN\ —FRESTE T REE
FFEZ— YR NA_FEREDERABBRKHAE  R-ANEFRERRTREEHS R-FT=
FRERAZFESR  UEREENASEE L EREHZRREF LR -

~

=+

Aged 56. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September 2004. He is the Senior
Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and an Independent Non-
executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited, Long Win Bus Company Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank
Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. and Meadville
Holdings Limited. Dr Li was an Independent Non-executive Director of CATIC International Holdings
Limited and Sinofert Holdings Limited, and a Non-executive Director of Strategic Global Investment
plc. Dr Li is a member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman
of its Public Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

A+ THELTAZTNFAL+ABRARRARES - AT SRETMELTEFEEA &
XA BAESBREEERERAR - WERL (—L==) BRAR REBELTERAR - FEE
HEZFRERAF  HHEASAMEEERAR - TREE (£B) ARAR - EERITERARF - E=H
BIXBR AR  RARITRODBERAFREELBRERARNBLIENTES - TR L LEREMRZE

BB ERER AR RPICEZERER R BIMNBE L IEHITES © LA KStrategic Global Investment
PICHIERITESE - TR LT ATFEARBEHEEZE T " E2EEZEEZE8  TER—NWN—FE2=F
EMEEARELEEHRERR - NANEFE_STNFAZSRFIREZESER - T ABE G

MRS &R



Professor Stephen
CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICRHEBAFEHL
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BYUIERTES

BBS, JP

Aged 50. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19 January 2009. He is

the Dean of the School of Business and a Professor (Chair) of Finance, at the Hong Kong Baptist
University. He also holds Advisory and Adjunct Professorships at Fudan University and Shanghai Jiao
Tong University respectively. He obtained a BSc from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, PhD in
Statistics from Universite de Paris VI, and PhD in Finance from the University of Strathclyde.

Professor Cheung has extensive consultancy experience in the Hong Kong financial sector. He has
served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its examination of the Hong Kong Banking
sector. He was Chairman of Core Group on Corporate Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation
Council and was responsible for drafting the PECC’s guidelines on good corporate governance practice
for Asia-Pacific economies. He has provided consultancy services to the Asian Development Bank,
United Nations ESCAP, Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial Services Bureau,
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd. He was also a part-time member of
advisory board of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Enhancing Self-Reliance Through
District Partnership Programme of the Home Affairs Department, Consultation Panel of the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority. He is also Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Asian
Bond Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. He serves

on the Operations Review Committee of Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC),
Commission on Strategic Development, Steering Committee of Review of Urban Renewal Strategy, and
Independent Police Complaints Council (IPCC). He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2009,
and was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR Government.

A RAEE FENE-ATABRARARES - hABSEEARTHERERRERS R
ERERE - (T AEERREMLEN EXBABRELRE - LI E ST ASTELER 22
fir - WREERREA AP BT B RN KBS N R REABRALMPE LB -

R ERRCRUBANERZNLEEATIE - B AR HEEZ R REERRTRAENER

BN - TR BERFFEESERES(PECC)B TARBAAA/NELRE  YEEER HARTAR
REBAMROETRIEQRERNIEE S - thBRRBERERRE : DMBRRT  BEENS

Aigite  EERES  BEFERANMEELH  BEMAR SN  HREEEXES () &

RAR o 75 B EFBRRERTHREFAIE2BER -

FHBRRARRBEBHRBIETH (KHEER) HEBEHBFAZES  AAMREERWEASE
B REEEMERBABFEARAIEEFBBECEERZEGER - AN  tARMAZENELSE
SRERHAZES RKEERZEE TREERRMRIELEZEE RAESBIUERZEINZE
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Aged 59. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March 2008. Mr Miller retired
- from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent Representative of the Hong Kong Special
§ Administrative Region of China to the World Trade Organization in Geneva. Key positions held
$=' E:. over a career spanning 35 years prior to Mr Miller’s retirement include Permanent Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of Housing and Chief Executive of the
' Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-General of Trade 1993-1996, Director of Marine 1991-1993,
3 Information Coordinator in the Chief Secretary’s Office 1989-1991 and Private Secretary to the
Governor 1979-1982. Mr Miller is a non-executive director of Transport International Holdings Limited,
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and chairman of Hong Kong Business Aviation
Centre Limited, a partly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. Mr Miller holds an MPA

John Anthony MILLER degree from Harvard University and a BA degree from London University.

+ om
slr;‘?fr FtAZ -  BERE4E ST N\F=ZA-THRBEAARRRESE - R _TT+F - AHMNEFBEHS
EES BRTHEEAAREREZAZERAR  IBFAAKERM - MERKIN=TAFFELERT Y
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), TZEER - REE_SE_FEZ_ZTNFANECEEREBEREINER  E—ANAFE-ZZT
BA (London) —FIREEERKEEZESNTBAS  E—NMN=FE-—NANAA FEEZBER E—LhL—FZE

—NN=FEEFERER ' £ N\NEFE-NN—FENBARLZEARERE - URE—EH
FE-NN_FEBBRAWE - EECELRRFBRBERARARALNEEL (—1==) AR
AAFHTES  RABEEAMET LARAR (RISEMEZRARARFALIBELHBEL
A) £FE c mBEREERERHBAZARTRRLEMLMAARNB R LR

Aged 48. Mr Ho has been a Director of the Company since 13 October 2008. Mr Ho has been

a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH") and of The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company Limited (“LWB”), both wholly-owned
subsidiaries of TIH, since 1 January 2001. Mr Ho joined KMB in September 1998 and served as
Finance and Administration Director from January 1999 to April 2003. He was promoted to Deputy
Managing Director of TIH, KMB and LWB with effect from 10 January 2002. He has been appointed
Managing Director of KMB and LWB since 1 January 2007 and Managing Director of TIH with effect
from 8 April 2008. Positions previously held by him included Investment Director of a merchant bank
and executive director of a number of transport infrastructure management and investment companies
in Hong Kong and on the Mainland of China. Mr Ho was formerly also a director of four Sino-foreign
joint venture companies of an international leading soft drink brand. Mr Ho holds a Master’s degree in

Edmond HO Tat Man

gji% engineering from Cambridge University and an MBA degree from The University of Hong Kong.

5= WA\ AAEBE_ZSZNFTAT=ZBRAARAESE - AAEEH_TZT—F— A —HAREESB
MA (Cantab), MBA, BERZERERAR ( [#H@] ) @ kEBZ2EAMBARNERLT (—A==) BRAR ( [AB])
FCILT, MHKloD K@ THERRA ( [E] ) 2EF - AXRER—NANANFAAMAAE - ¥EH—AANF—RAZE

T =FN AREEM B RITBAE - MEER _TE_F - A THEEA REE  NEREEZ
BEER - TTLF - A PEREENERREZESARE YA _TTN\FHANREES
REBZEFHKE - ELSEE—HBARTHREES  REBTAMSKEHERZERERKE
RAMPITES - BN —ERRZR ) TVKRENERPIEELEETES - WELEKARBARE
TREABRLTBUREEASIHERR LB -



MAK Chun Keung
ZHiRE

Director

5%

Anthony NG
RKE

Director
==

BA, MBA (Ivey)

Aged 69. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001. He joined The Kowloon
Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) in 1994, appointed Commercial Director in 2001 and
retired in February 2006. He was Director of KMB'’s first two joint ventures to operate public bus
services in People’s Republic of China. Mr Mak has over 20 years of experience in international
banking and finance, and has held senior executive positions in foreign and local banking institutions
throughout his career.

ANThg - BEREB-_TT—FREA_T=ZHE/ER T%$°’rﬂl§*ﬂﬂﬂl¢bﬂ)\ﬂ%§ﬁi
(=h==) ERARA (ThE])  R-ZET-FEZEABHEAEIR _FTERF_ARK - tZ
ARIAEEMERTEARKNBEREARCLIRENSERARNES - %?ﬁiﬁl@%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁmﬂﬁ@ﬁ
B &R WENINERARITEEEESEARRITRASBRLA -

Aged 42. Mr Ng has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. He is a director of Harvest
City Ltd (a company investing in public bus operations in Shenyang, Jilin and Dalian) and was a
director of NetThruPut Inc (a Canadian leading company in webbased crude oil trading and an affiliate
company of Enbridge Inc). Mr Ng is a member of Council to the Board of Sowers Action, a charity
organisation which aims at developing fundamental education in China. Mr Ng is the brother of Ms
Winnie Ng, Deputy Chairman of the Company. Mr Ng holds an MBA degree from the Richard Ivey
School of Business of the University of Western Ontario.

H+=pR e AAEBE-ZT—FONA—BEAARRES - thALHERAR ( ZARKRELERITE
5 EMBERETHALETER) NESREENetThruPut Inc (ZARA—REMEARGAEE M
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS %2

Position held in the Group

NZNESE TR EER: o) v

Date of appointment
Z{ERAH

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman 15 January 2001
PRAEZE T KT 4+ *RE —ZT—F—A+AH
GBS, JP

Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
gL Bl —ET—F—A+AHB
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008
AXKBIEEE BlEF T N\F+—A=+H
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001
RRERB TR T4+ BYIERTES —EE-FEPA—H
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung Independent Non-Executive Director 16 September 2004
FREBLEANTFHL BYIFNITES —EEMEFERATNHE
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung Independent Non-Executive Director 19 January 2009

RERBEAFHL
BBS, JP

BYFRTES

—EZhF—A+AhH

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director 15 April 2008
EEAELE BEEHKE —EENFWOATAHBE
Mr Anthony NG Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001
AR L& FMITESE —EE-FWPA—H
Mr MAK Chun Keung Non-Executive Director 23 May 2001
iR A FHMITESE —ETE—FRHA=1+=H
Mr John Anthony MILLER Non-Executive Director 20 March 2008
HBMLE EITEF “EE\F=A=1H
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
Al S S A

Non-Executive Director
FMITES

13 October 2008
—EENF+A+=H

SENIOR MANAGEMENT & #k

/.I:‘_|

IR A

=

Position held in the Group

\

~

NZNESE IR EgE: o) 5 4

Year joined the Group
MAREE 2 F15H

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director April 2008
EmASE EERKE —EENFEHA
Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Programme Officer September 2008
& 5 A% S = &7 B R B B —ZEENFNA
Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung Finance & Administration Director and Company Secretary February 2007
Mgt M RITHABERARMWE —ZTLFE R
Mr Ramond YIU Wing Hong Marketing & Sales Director (HK & Greater China) October 2000
Bk B MRk EEEE (KRAEMR) —ZEEEFTH
Ms Ada LO Ching Operations & Planning Director October 2000
EExz+t =8 R A 4R —ZEETFTA
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RoadShow’s Corporate Governance Framework

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
have placed strong emphasis on maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and believe that good corporate governance provides a solid
and sound framework to assist the Board of Directors (the “Board”) in
fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the Group and its shareholders.

In November 2004, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) issued the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices
and Corporate Governance Report” (the “Code”), which took effect

for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The
Code sets out principles of good corporate governance and two levels of
recommendations, namely:

e Code Provisions (listed companies are expected to comply with all
these provisions or to give considered reasons for any deviation); and

e Recommended Best Practices (listed companies are encouraged
to comply with these recommendations or to give reasons for
any deviation).

On 14 March 2005, the Board established the “RoadShow Code on
Corporate Governance” (the “RoadShow Code”) and the Company has
implemented the RoadShow Code since then. On 8 March 2006, the
Board approved and adopted a number of new sections of the RoadShow
Code which, among other things, rectified the two deviations from

the code provisions (in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) as reported in the Annual Report for the year ended
31 December 2005. The RoadShow Code was further updated in March
2009 in accordance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which had
become effective from 1 January 2009.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices

The Company was in compliance with all applicable code provisions

set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2009.

The Board of Directors

The Board is composed of eleven Directors as at 31 December 2009,
three of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).
These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial experience to
the Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Group.
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In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has appointed various Board Committees. The majority of the members
of the Board Committees are either INEDs or Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs"). Each of the committees has its specific terms of reference.
The Company’s boardroom framework is outlined below:

Board of

REBARRENENER  EFECERE
TRMEEZES -EXZEENETIER
BUFRTEERHNTES ( [FANTE
F£]) - BZZECEAEBERESRE - A
RAMEFGREH AT

Directors
Ay

Audit

Executive

INEDs Committee Committee
LB I TEE THEZEE EREEE

NEDs NEDs INEDs
FIEHITESR ZITES EEIIHTES
MD MD NEDs
PR FEEBEE ZIFTES

Details of all Directors, including the Chairman, Managing Director (“MD"),
Executive Director, NEDs and INEDs are set out on pages 34 to 39 of this
Annual Report. The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships) among members of the Board are
also disclosed. There is no such relationship between the Chairman and
the MD.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company.

The types of decisions that are taken by the Board include those relating
to:
e the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

e the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

e overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers,
employees and the community; and

e the assessment and management of risk to which the Group is
exposed.

Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee

FHEES RELER
INEDs INEDs
EEIENTES BB IENITES
NED NED
ZIEMTES ZIEMTES
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The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements for each financial year or period that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that year or period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009, the Directors have:

e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
e made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and

e prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual and interim
reports, “price-sensitive” announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as reports to regulators and
information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.
The responsibility of the External Auditors for the audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 62 to 63 of this Annual
Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board at all times
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs and also the requirement that one
of these INEDs should possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company

has received a written confirmation from each INED of his or her
independence from the Company. The Company considers all of the
INEDs to be independent.

Board Meeting

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules and
regulations. Written procedures are also in place for Directors to seek
independent professional advice in performing their Directors’ duties at
the Company’s expense. No request was made by any Director for such
independent professional advice in 2009. Eight Board meetings were
held during 2009 and the average attendance rate of Directors was 88%
(2008: 72.5%). The attendance record of the Directors of the Company
in 2009 is set out in the following table.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2009

BEFER_ETNFRTNEFTEEZNLERBR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
iR BITEE Aotk

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHITES :
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 8/8 100%
RN EL
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung 7/8 88%
FREB L
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung (appointed as Director on 19 January 2009) 8/8 100%
KRR R-FThE—A+NARETAES)
Mr HUI Ki On (ceased to be Director on 3 May 2009) 0/2 0%
PR (RSEEAFHEAZARIEAES)
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman) 8/8 100%
BRADZE L (£7)
Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman) 8/8 100%
hmBEBZT (2lERE)
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman) 8/8 100%
BXBEE (BIXR)
Mr Anthony NG (with Ms Winnie NG as alternate) 8/8 100%
hAOERE (RBEHLLTARRTES)
Mr MAK Chun Keung 7/8 88%
BEHR5E E A
Mr John Anthony MILLER 8/8 100%
ML
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man 6/8 75%
fa] 3 XX 5 A4
Executive Director:
HITES !
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang 8/8 100%
FEHESLE
Board Committees EEZEY
The Board has appointed Executive Committee, Audit Committee, BEFEECEZAETHEER  EREES W
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to oversee various MEEERREZBEEEARASTEN
aspects of the Company’s affairs. ey
Executive Committee TRESe
The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001. The AkEeeR —ET—En A+ AR -
Committee is composed of four Directors, three of whom are NEDs. ZEemNLESAR  Eh= AABEHT

R



The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year and on
an ad hoc basis if necessary to review business operations, financial
operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These projects include
major acquisitions, investments and their funding requirements.

During 2009, the Executive Committee held five meetings. The
attendance record of the members of the Executive Committee in 2009
is summarised below:-

THZBEREATHEREE  UNFE
BIAERAREHE  UEHERXBEE -
FBEERFRIER - ZFRABEERK
B REBAREMBENESZH -

RZZEENF  THRZEESRTTHAAE
FOoTREBEKER-ZENFNHER
BRI T -

Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2009

BEXRER_ZEFNFRITNTRZESERNHFRR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
T BTEE Bak

Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman) 5/5 100%
HEREE (£R)
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman) 5/5 100%
BRIEZEL (EER)
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang 5/5 100%
FEHAELE
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man 5/5 100%
AEX L
Audit Committee HEREE
The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The Committee ERZBEER _TE-FOA+T—BAKIL-
is composed of five NEDs, three of whom are INEDs. The MD is required ZEEHMARFRPTESENR EF=ZAR
to attend each Audit Committee meeting as requested by the members BUFNTES EFREERERBEEN
of the Committee. After each meeting, the Audit Committee reports to EMERNFESRERRZBEER - BKZ
the Board on significant issues. As at the date of this Annual Report, the BENEBRERRUANEFTERERS
members of the Audit Committee are Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung (chairman), Dr B ° RAFHREH - ERZBEEXNEREF
Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Ms Winnie Ng, Mr Yung Wing Chung and Professor XEBL (£F)  ®REREL - GEBX
Stephen Cheung Yan Leung. T BKBEERKCRHE -

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating to accounting and reporting practices, to improve the credibility
and objectivity of the Company’s financial and other reports, and

to strengthen the system of internal control, risk management and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

During 2009, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following documents and matters in the
meetings:

e the Company’s Report of the Directors, Independent Auditor’'s Report
and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
and 2008 Annual Report, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

ERZBEMMESTERITEEME RE
BEROEL  HEARAPBEREMERE
BRI M R B - LA 058 A Ba 2 I
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RZTTNGF  BERZEERTT=ARE
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£H
o ARREFEWME BUZKHAMBEE
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e the Company’s Interim Financial Report for the six months ended 30
June 2009 and Interim Report 2009, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

e the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

e the audit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2009, including the extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

e the results of the external audits:

e the fees payable to the External Auditors of the internal review for the
six months ended 30 June 2009 and of the audit for the year ended
31 December 2009, and terms of engagement of the External
Auditors for approval by the Board;

e the results of the 2008 and 2009 internal audits performed by an
outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal Auditors”);

e the 2009 internal audit plans of the Internal Auditors including the
extent of co-ordination between the Audit Committee and the
Internal Auditors;

e the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group,
including (i) Executive, (i) Programming and Production, (ii)
Operation, (iv) Human Resources Management, (v) Finance and
Accounting, (vi) Regulatory compliance and (vii) Follow up review on
the Group’s associate performed by the Internal Auditors; and

e the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws, regulations,
standards and best practice guidelines.

The attendance record of the members of the Audit Committee in 2009 is
summarised below:-

o ARFEEHEZZTENFNAZTHLER
BAMT G BERER ST N F R
RE URBETESSHE

o ARREHBREREETESRITGR
ARIEIER

o NEREMREE —_TTAFT-A=
+—ALEFENENEZTSE  BIEE
LB e BZEM 2 HNAEER

o INEBEHMER

o ENEREMAHE _TTAFENAZ
+HEIERNEAREBEEZE —_ZZENFE+_A
=+ —HIEFEEMNTINEZEED AR
HEMEARZEER  UWRINEZE
BRI B A IEFK

o SNHBSIHEERNT ([REBZEE] )
BTN _ZZNER -_ZTNFRNELE
AR

o AMEZEBEHITH _ETENFANERX
TE BEEZZESHRABZEEZ
MREERBR

o AREEANIELHENERE  BEA
Az EEN TR/ TE - (INETE &
B (&8 ((VANBREE - (v)8F
BREET  (viYRBIESFE R M (viD B AR
SEBENRETRERT &

o ARAREFIBABEAZED - RO - 2R
MEETRIESINBR -

BREZEENER_TTNFNHFE DM
N

Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2009

ERER_ZTNFRTNERZESEANHERR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
FtiE BTEas BOL

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman) 3/3 100%
FRE[L (/)
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 2/3 67%
R EL
Ms Winnie NG 3/3 100%
hAEg R+
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 3/3 100%
BXBIE
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung (appointed as member on 13 May 2009) 2/2 100%
RECRHE R-ZTNERA+=AREMAAKE)
Mr HUI Ki On (ceased to be member on 3 May 2009) 0/1 0%

HHZRE (R=ZZAFRAZAKILAKE)




Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March
2004 comprising three NEDs, two of whom are INEDs. As at the date of
this Annual Report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Mr Yung Wing Chung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui and Professor
Stephen Cheung Yan Leung.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate

a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the strategic
objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the Remuneration
Committee formulates policies on and reviews the remuneration of the
Company’s Directors and senior management.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

e no individual should determine his or her own remuneration package;

e remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with
whom the Company competes for human resources;

e the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages that
attract and retain executives needed to run the Group successfully
and motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst it should avoid paying an excessive amount for such purposes;

e remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of work; and

e remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that can
provide incentives to Directors and senior management to improve
their individual performance.

In 2009, the Remuneration Committee:
e reviewed the remuneration package of Directors and made
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewed and assessed criteria for awarding performance related
bonuses to Directors, having regard to the Group’s business
objectives and targets; and

e reviewed the principal elements of the remuneration packages of
senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2009. The attendance
record of the members of the Remuneration Committee in 2009 is
summarised below:-

FHEREER

ZEENFRITT REH -

FMEZEBERBER _TTNFHOHF 8

e

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meetings in 2009

ERER_ZETNFRTNFIHZESSRNHFERR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
FtE BTEas B
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (chairman) 1/1 100%
AXBIE (XR)
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 1/1 100%
R EL
Mr HUI Ki On (ceased to be member on 3 May 2009) 0/1 0%

FERZEE R—ZZNEFRA=ZAKILAKE)

Note: Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung was appointed on 13 May 2009 as member
but the Remuneration Committee meeting was held prior to the appointment date of
Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March 2006
comprising three NEDs, two of whom are INEDs. As at the date of this
Annual Report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr Yung
Wing Chung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui and Professor Stephen
Cheung Yan Leung. No Nomination Committee meeting was held in 2009.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for Directorships;

e assessing the independence of INEDs; and

e making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the MD.

Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of new
Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board for decision
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with reference to criteria that include professional knowledge and
industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
the time commitments of the candidates. Thereafter, all Directors are
subject to re-election by the shareholders at the general meetings in their
first year of appointment.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years.

Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility,

the posts of the Chairman and the MD are held separately by Dr John
Chan Cho Chak and Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang respectively. The Chairman

is responsible for ensuring that the Board is functioning properly with
good corporate governance practices and procedures, whilst the MD is
responsible for managing the Group’s businesses in a manner consistent
with the Group’s standards and in accordance with specific plans,
instructions or directions of the Board.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company required all its Directors to comply with the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year 2009.

The Company’s Code on Securities Transactions is prepared on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Interests in Shares

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out in the
Report of the Directors section on pages 56 to 57 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls in RoadShow and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee have
decided to outsource the review of the internal control functions to the
Internal Auditors and the Board has delegated to the management the
implementation of such system of internal controls as well as the review
of relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control functions by the Internal Auditors

was based on the “COSO” framework (the internal control framework
developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission).
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The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity are clearly
stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook, as well as
the policies and procedures manuals, which set out the rules and polices,
for the Directors and employees to follow. These cover all aspects of
administrative and operational activities, including relationships with
customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staff. The internal control
system covers every activity and transaction of the Group in RoadShow.
The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities, authorities and
accountability. Our employee is an important part of our internal system
and the Group expects them to contribute to that system. In addition to
setting our guidelines, principles and values, the Group recognises that an
environment where employees feel free to bring problems to management
is also necessary to make our internal control system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditors with professional particularly experience in assessing risks and
control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control environment,
conducted risk assessments of businesses and processes, and
documented those processes that are critical to the Group’s performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing basis and the MD and Finance

& Administration Director have to report any significant changes,
deficiencies and material weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal
controls to the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors.

Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the audit plan designed by the Internal Auditors and
agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors updates and reviews
the Company’s internal control system every year in such a way that the
update and review of all the major components of the internal control
system are completed within a period of three years. The Internal Auditors
provides recommendations to management to improve internal controls
after each review for management and Audit Committee’s consideration.

During 2009, the Internal Auditors reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with relevant policies and procedures of the
Company. The scope covered the following processes:

e Executive

e Programming and Production

e QOperation

e Human Resources Management
e Finance and Accounting

e Regulatory compliance

e Follow up review on the Group’s associate
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Based on the findings and comments from the Internal Auditors and Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control system effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2009. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the Company’s shareholders were
identified.

Price-sensitive information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company

e isaware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that information that is expected to be price-sensitive
should be announced immediately;

e conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guide on disclosure of
price-sensitive information” issued by the Stock Exchange in 2002;

e hasincluded in its Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or insider information; and

e has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior staff of the
Group are identified and authorised to act as the Company’s
spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated areas of issues.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of the External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments, the
Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits undertaken
by the External Auditors should not have an adverse impact on their
independence. The External Auditors are also required to review their
relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to the Audit
Committee confirming their independent status.

During 2009, the External Auditors (including any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the external auditors or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all
relevant information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally) provided the following audit and non-audit
services to the Group. Details are set out below:
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An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors

are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the “CCDE”)
has long been established to ensure that both Directors and employees
are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of defined ethical obligations and
appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses and/or performing
their duties. The CCDE also provides guidance on responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company, customers and the community. Any
member in breach of the CCDE is subject to disciplinary action. The CCDE
is updated from time to time, taking into account changes in the relevant
legislation and the business environment.

Investors Relations and Communications

The Company continues to pursue a pro-active policy of promoting
investor relations and communications by holding meetings with
institutional shareholders and analysts. In accordance with the Listing
Rules, the Company would arrange for the notice to shareholders to be
sent in the case of annual general meetings at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days in
the case of all other meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all
shareholders have 21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting
and Special General Meeting for passing of a special resolution, and 14
clear days’ notice of all other general meetings at which the Company’s
directors and Committee Chairmen or members are available to answer
their questions. The results of any voting by poll are announced and
published as soon as possible, but in any event no later than that is 30
minutes before the earlier of the commencement of the morning trading
session or any pre-opening session on the business day following the
meeting, on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s website together
with details of the meeting, including the time and venue and major
resolutions. As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate information
and other relevant financial and non-financial information electronically
and on a timely basis.

During 2009, the Board confirmed that there were no significant changes
made in the Company’s Bye-laws.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Directors”) have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2009.

Principal place of business

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda and has its
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and principal place of business at 9 Po Lun
Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of media sales
and management and administrative services for the Multi-media
On-board (the “MMOB"), transit vehicle exteriors and interiors
advertising businesses and the operation of media advertising
management services through marketing advertising spaces on
transit vehicle exteriors, interiors, shelters and outdoor signages
and the provision of advertising agency services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. The
analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 64 to 137 of
this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.41 cents per share (2008: HK5.00 cents per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28
to the financial statements. There were no movements during the
year.

Transfer to reserves

Profits attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, of HK$14,016,000 (2008: HK$42,615,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Details of movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 28
to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman and

Alternate Director to
Mr Anthony NG
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP
Mr HUI Ki On*
GBS, CBE, QPM, CPM
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan
Leung* BBS, JP
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
Mr Anthony NG
Mr MAK Chun Keung
Mr John Anthony MILLER
SBS, OBE
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

Ceased to be a director on
3 May 2009

Appointed on 19 January
2009
Managing Director

* Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI, Mr Anthony NG and Mr MAK
Chun Keung retire from the Board of Directors (the “Board”) by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2009 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding
companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
at that date as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO:

Interests in issued shares

Personal Family
Beneficial interests interests interests
BakEs BARER EYiY £
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AR a] IR EEBHO.1THZER
Winnie NG (Note 2) hxEtE (MEE2) 1,000,000 —

Anthony NG (Note 2)

hoE (HfFE2) — —

E= 10

REARANARAMAUEL GREEMARZME
RAREREFS LRI ETHRR DM ER 14482
ERRBREL  MAOEEERBIRBEERER
BERIEFS((EFE))  ERRNABRITHRR
BFERE LIREBIE -

AR ) 3l ELAE fa] B B8 2 m) 3 8 B R 0 B S 2R 1T RO R
RBEFARE LREEINEFITLEAR—FRE
ARARHEEMMERRLIEESOR - FIELE
1B (B —ACEERREIN B H R E R RIS A4 -

=R - HERO REEEN D OAR

RECESRAEGRINDEL2GMFENEERE
SITBRABRRRARBLMHORLE  R-22Th
Ft+t-A=+t—REANEENZARALRA - &
BT -~ ME AR R E AR AE (E & R(ES
KRG IGGI) R R HEE A T HE

REBRTRO PHESR
% of total
issued
Total shares
number of h2E
Corporate Other shares held 2817
interests interests B R4
NERER Hiti s AP 4B AL
— 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
— 123,743 123,743 0.0%



Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures (continued)

Interests in issued shares (continued)

Personal Family
Beneficial interests interests interests
BEER BAREZ kR

EERKD - HERD REEENEDS SRR )

REBITROPOES )

% of total

issued

Total shares

number of h2E

Corporate Other shares held 2817
interests interests s R4

DR Hitp iz MR 1342 B

Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) (Note 1): Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

BB ZRERAR ([BE]) (K1)  SREEEBEITHEER

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak [RtE)EtE+ 2,000 —
Winnie NG (Note 3) hxatE (ME3) 41,416 —
Anthony NG (Note 3) HA0E (Mi3E3) 233,954 —
Notes:

1 TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

2 Each of Ms Winnie NG and Mr Anthony NG has interest in 123,743 shares
in the Company as a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially
held the shares.

3 Each of Ms Winnie NG and Mr Anthony NG has interest in 21,000,609
shares in TIH as a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially
held the shares.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or other associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

— — 2,000 0.0%
— 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
— 21,000,609 21,234,563 5.3%

1 BEDARRHREERARF

2 REBLEIRAKEEEZEBUNETLAGENREAS N
BARRDF 123,743 B R - MAFLAGEEER/E L
sy <yl

3 MREBZIROEREEBUETRAGENREAFNHE
B#M21,000,609 8BS  MZERAGTERTE
Ao -

B EdFEIN  ERHEEMRMEBIARH T NARNTF
TRERARR  HEAEZERAR  MEARSKE
i AEEEE A - RO RERETHERE
(E7 M HIBGRA)FE 352 F R EAFE R E T AT
CHRFIBBETRAREZTETESFRZINREST
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Share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2001 whereby the Directors are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The purpose of
the Scheme is to provide an opportunity for employees of the
Group to acquire an equity participation in the Company and
to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years ending on 6 June 2011, after which no
further options will be granted.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2009 was 99,736,533 shares which
represented 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
31 December 2009. In respect of the maximum entitlement of
each participant under the Scheme, the number of securities
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of the Company.

At 31 December 2009, no options were outstanding.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

At 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

TEMRMEMALRED - HERND REEE
MR SRR

RZZFZNF+ZA=1T—8 BEARAESFT A&
SITHABING AT ATFEE AN A Bl sk H A (] MR EEE
B (E&EBCEH RGN )E XV F0) KRR () 1 48 7
B EIAE + BIRIBCGES KB E KGNS XV
HE2RIDERTEMEARRTNEBHERZ I
BRAA - NRIE(ES R EIEREI ) 336 R7BH
RARREZME - FEET :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
BREEBEITHEBER

Registered
shareholders
EHRBR
Substantial shareholders FEREK
TIH (Note) i\ (M) —
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410
Other person Hib At
DJE Investment S.A. DJE Investment S.A. }&
and others Hih 69,956,000

Note: KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares in the Company.
KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, which is
accordingly deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held
by KMB Resources Limited in the Company under the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of
the SFO have been notified to the Company.

% of total

Corporate Total number of issued shares
interests shares held HEBERT
ARER iR A E RHEBEDE
728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%
— 728,127,410 73.01%

— 69,956,000 7.01%

MizE : KMB Resources Limited #74 728,127,410 RAR R A& 5 ©
KMB Resources Limited & @2 EME R - BUREC(E
N EAEEDI) - Simi R A% G KMB Resources Limited BT
FrERZE & o

B bt SN - AN RN A E A AR ARBCGE
7 M E GG )E 336 R FEM B MM R IOR
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BAREP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFART
The largest supplier RAMSER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EREET

At no time during the year have the Directors and their associates
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

During the year, KMB Public Bus Services Holdings Limited and
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, which are
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of TIH, are the largest customer
and largest supplier of the Group respectively.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RN DRI E
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 34 to 40 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 138 to
139 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) under the
regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans and their particulars are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO

THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEABERERABARRNVE LA HRE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
RoadShow Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
64 to 137, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTAF+ A=+ —HIEFEGRBEFE)

Note 2009 2008
=2 $’000 $’000
Fr T
Turnover B 3 196,361 148,412
Other revenue and other net income E A YA R Eo W 2 5 5E 4 26,778 35,560
Total operating revenue I PNEE ] 223,139 183,972
Operating expenses rReEsEH
Royalty, licence and management fees FHNE FHEREEE (84,077) (51,588)
Staff expenditure BT (40,315) (28,801)
Depreciation and amortisation rERE#H (9,875) (14,638)
Cost of inventories FEKA (5,505) (3,285)
Repairs and maintenance HEERIRE (3,511) (9,093)
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FEUR BR OB E B 18 (10) (414)
Other operating expenses E b2 A (43,004) (33,210)
Total operating expenses KB REE (186,297) (141,029)
Profit from operations K& BF| 36,842 42,943
Finance costs BisER 5 — (300)
Impairment loss of other non-current HhFEmE 2 & EREEE
financial assets 19(a) (9,801) —
Share of (loss)/profit of associate JE(LERE AT (B1E) /BF (4,544) 14,141
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest RIEHEHE AR SO
in associate Wz 18(a) 177 —
Profit before taxation BREIATE R 5 22,674 56,784
Income tax Frig it 6(a) (4,454) (7,062)
Profit for the year KEERF 18,220 49,722
Attributable to: PRI
Equity shareholders of the Company RABRRER 9 14,016 42,615
Minority interests DB RS 4,204 7,107
Profit for the year KEEER 18,220 49,722
Earnings per share (in Hong Kong cents) BRER (W)
Basic HA 11(a) 1.41 4.27
Diluted #g 11(b) N/A FiE A N/A 73 F

The notes on pages 72 to 137 form part of these financial 728 Z% 137 BMNMTEAMBEHRERDH 3B

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of A4 fF A AN FIIEEIE E MBS 10 -
the Company attributable to the year are set out in note 10.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEeEEEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTAF+ A=+ —HFE(RBEEHE)

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Profit for the year REFEFEF] 18,220 49,722
Other comprehensive income for the year AREFHMEEmKE BRREE
(after tax and reclassification adjustments): BN S EAERE)
Other non-current financial assets: HEthIEREemEE:
Net movement in the fair value reserve DR BEREENEE (120) =
Exchange differences release upon deemed disposal of — RR{EH SR & N T DR
partial interest in associate B OlfE 5 =58 (3,112) —
Exchange differences on translation of the financial HE R/ B AINETS BT TS TR A
statements of operations outside Hong Kong b5 =58 — 6,021
Total comprehensive income for the year REETEIKNZEE 14,988 55,743
Attributable to: BRI
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG S 10,784 48,636
Minority interests DA RS 4,204 7,107
Total comprehensive income for the year REEHEKRZHEE 14,988 55,743

The notes on pages 72 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.

ET72HEF 137 ANME B AR B mRe —1) -

TiEI IR AR AT 2009 ANNUAL REPORT — B ZE H EF 4R

A

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED B%

[=2)
(3]



66

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

At 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZETNF+ZA=+—BUREEHE)

Note 2009 2008
B 5E $'000 $'000
Fr T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13 13,407 11,855
Media assets IR A 14 372 778
Goodwill ma 15 — —
Non-current prepayments IERBNTETFRIA 16 19,160 28,741
Interest in associate NG 18 — 256,926
Other non-current financial assets HitFEnE e mEE 19 231,664 —
Deferred tax assets BEEFRIEEE 26(b) 3,802 6,227
268,405 304,527

Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 20 1,138 818
Amount due from ultimate holding company JEU B 48458 B A R R TE 21(a) 4,773 4,773
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries AEES SN E e 21(d) 2,997 1,863
Accounts receivable JrEUS BR SR 22 57,201 25,885
Other receivables and deposits Hih R BR R R IE & 15,638 10,415
Prepayments SELNEE 16 9,580 9,580
Current tax recoverable A[ U Bl 7S R A 18 26(a) — 2,959
Pledged bank deposits BIIFRITFR 23 51,200 =
Bank deposits and cash RITFEHRERE 24 447,934 533,899
590,461 590,192
Current liabilities REEE

Accounts payable FEFTARSR 25 4,931 4,403
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEAT R 2 P8 A R 3IE 21(d) 3,286 5,705
Other payables and accruals Hth RN R ETER 39,228 27,318
Current tax payable FERT AR BRI 26(a) 1,681 551
49,126 37,977
Net current assets REBEEFE 541,335 552,215
Total assets less current liabilities EEAEBRRBERSE 809,740 856,742

Non-current liabilities FEREBAME
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIRBE 26(b) 573 2,295
NET ASSETS EERE 809,167 854,447




Note 2009 2008
{iEss $’000 $’000
T Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAERFES

Share capital &N 28(a) 99,737 99,737
Reserves fES 703,240 742,324

Total equity attributable to equity AT R R =
shareholders of the Company ikl 28(a) 802,977 842,061
Minority interests DY B RER 28(a) 6,190 12,386
TOTAL EQUITY RS 809,167 854,447
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on SKEZFEN_T-—TF=A+ A% EW A&

17 March 2010.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PRIEZEE L

Chairman

e

Alex MO Tik Sang

B}l

Managing Director

EFpa

The notes on pages 72 to 137 form part of these financial #72B8E% 137 B ZEBARMBEREN—30D ©

statements.
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68

BALANCE SHEET
BEERER

At 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZEZEAF+ZA=+—BURBEHE)

Note 2009 2008
B 5E $'000 $'000
Fr FIr
Non-current assets FERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries Wi B AR E 17 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE M B /B8 X R RIA 21(c) 566,549 542,977
629,384 605,812
Current assets mEEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company JE UL B 4R 47 IR A R SR IE 21(a) 4,773 4,773
Other receivables and deposits H b R R R iR S 801 4,066
Pledged bank deposits EIRARITER 23 51,200 —
Bank deposits and cash RITERRRE 24 267,882 367,905
324,656 376,744
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST B B A B IE 21(b) 230,990 223,105
Other payables and accruals EMER R R ERT B A 3,827 7,194
234,817 230,299
Net current assets REBEEFE 89,839 146,445
NET ASSETS EEFRE 719,223 752,257
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#ES
Share capital %N 28(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HES 619,486 652,520
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 28(b) 719,223 752,257
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KEFER _Z—ZF=-A T HZEWTFAIHE
17 March 2010. H oo

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PRIBEE L
Chairman

T

Alex MO Tik Sang
ES e

Managing Director
EFpLE

The notes on pages 72 to 137 form part of these financial $72HZE% 137 B EBAYTERERLN—Z0D o

statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZTTAG+ A=+ —BILFERBEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KORRFER
Note Share Share  General  Contributed Other ~ Fairvalue  Exchange  Retained Minority Total
iF: capital ~ premium reserve  swplus reserve  reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
Bt - B4 B OAEE HE L] | s
i iy it Bg it i i Bl g RRkE 2
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r r r i i T T T i fr
Balance at 1 January 2008 W-8ENE-5-A
523 9737 531769 B ) (60 - L0 99 89 59 881
Changes in equity for 2008; “2E)\EHERED
Dividends approved in respect RBLEEEHED
of the previous year ) 10(b) - - - - - - —  (88566)  (8860) —  (88,566)
Appropriaton to general reserve BAZ-HhER - - 601 = - - - (601) = - -
Total comprehensive income for the~~~ AEE2ENELES
year - - - — - - 6,021 42615 43636 1107 55743
Balance at 31 December 2008 and ~ R=FZN\E+2F
1 January 2009 St-AR-EENE
-f-Bbss 99731 531,769 839 (200 (60) - 17074 193441 842,061 12,386 854447
Changes in equity for 2009: TEENENERED
Dividends approved in respect BELERRHED
of the previous year ) 10(b) - - - - - - —  (49,868)  (49,868) - (40,868)
Total comprehensive income for the~~ AEE2EME LS
year - - - - - (120) (312) 14,016 10,784 4,204 14,988
Dividends paid to minorty interests 2R FHERRARE - - - - - - - - —  (lodoo)  (10,400)
Balance at 31 December 2009 R=FEAE+ZA
Zt-BhkR 973 531769 89 (00) (60 (o) 13982 157595 80207 6i90 809187

part of these financial 728 Z% 137 BERKIEBATP ISR E R — 30

5 e

The notes on pages 72 to 137 form
statements.
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70

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTAF+ A=+ ALFE(REEHE)

Note 2009 2008
P $'000 $:000
Fr T
Operating activities R SEE
Profit before taxation BRI & 7 22,674 56,784
Adjustments for: FE .
Depreciation and amortisation e 9,875 14,638
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERETEEERE — 241
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FEUBR FUR B &5 18 10 Zhiet
Reversal of write-down of inventories #0117 B O (263) (204)
Finance costs M55 R — 300
Impairment loss of other non-current HitdEmaemEERE
financial assets 518 9,801 —
Share of loss/(profit) of associate GRS A TSR (BA]) 4,544 (14,141)
Interest income FEWA (13,648) (24,411)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest RIEL EHE ARl Ebh
in associate EolthE:s 177 —
Foreign exchange gain [E 5 W a (705) (5,678)
Operating profit before changes BEESEHAMN
in working capital FEE=—pzp | 32,111 27,943
Decrease in prepayments TEAS FRIE R >
(non-current and current) (FERE KR ED) 9,581 9,581
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M), w (57) 836
Increase in amount due from ultimate JRE W B AR 458 IR X R R IE A
holding company — (2,551)
Increase in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & U [ Z K BB A 7 FRIEE fn (1,134) (1,863)
Increase in accounts receivable JE W R )45 N (31,326) (4,605)
Increase in other receivables and deposits H b fE YL BR 3k N 3R & 1 hn (8,205) (4,419)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FERTBEZIE AN (R A) 528 (959)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FE{F R R HiB A 7B R A (2,419) (2,821)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables EM R R ERT B A
and accruals =40 CRid>) 3,506 (22,910)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations RKE (AR RLEFHNES 2,585 (1,768)
Interest received B U F & 4,239 6,685
Tax (paid)/refunded (2ft),/REFE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BENEBENER (1,601) (4,611)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded — BREBFEH 2,338 145
— PRC income tax paid — BENFEAEER (399) (2,384)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating KRB ~(FBAR) KL EHH
activities RE&FHE 7,162 (1,933)




Note 2009 2008
Bt 5% $’000 $’000
Fr Tt
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEEMNK (11,021) (403)
Payment for purchase of other BAHMIERBSREE
non-current financial assets IR (8,064) —
Repayment of loan from associate Bt N AEBER 25,830 —
Interest received from associate [REEENEIVIS 3,203 2,138
Interest received B F 8 8,393 12,727
Net cash generated from investing activities REREZENIE S FHE 18,341 14,462
Financing activities AR E
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits =@ A& B HRRITER
maturing over three months B (HEA) 212,158 (351,605)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits B2 MEITFR(120) F (51,200) 38,000
Repayment of bank loan EERITER — (38,000)
Interest paid BERFLE — (300)
Dividends paid BATAR S (49,868) (88,566)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BT O ERRARE (10,400) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE(AR)BETEH
financing activities BEFE 100,690 (440,471)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESESEYHEM
cash equivalents (R2) 35 126,193 (427,942)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHNEBESRRLSEEY 125,794 552,457
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEFHHNTE — 1,279
Cash and cash equivalents R+T=—A=+—-HNARER
at 31 December REZEEY 24 251,987 125,794

The notes on pages 72 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR oL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEETIN REETE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2009 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that certain investments (see note 1(f)) are stated at their
fair value.

1

TEEHER

(a)

(b)

BHIEA

AU HHREACBRELBEAMAG([EFE
SEEIRE DBRMNABEER(ERYBR
SEAN(EFEHMBREEL)]) - BFEHR
BEANEIKEEVBREER) (BB
SR EANKERBSFERD]) k2 -
BAELR G RAUREB(RBERG DA H
BRERHE AMBHRRTTEERHA
RBABERAFKES LHRRT LR
ANDMERBRBERE - ARBRMOETE
SERIBEMEHRN T

BAEG A AEERME TR REEET
(BEPBMEEL)  ZFH] REEFT
EUARAEERARARZAGAHAB AR
LR A IR PR o MR 2 85I E VIR R
FREAREEE BT BB LM E
ERAPBERR N RRZIR B E S
RS BRESHNER

MERRARLE
BE-TThE+-A=+—BLEE
GaUBRELEARAREHBAR (R
TR A8 )) o SR A 2 28 ] i

RAETTERRARABOAERLERE LK
A% - MEETRE(RMZELN) HREAR
BEEYR -



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements are discussed in note 34.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

1

FESFTBEOR @)
(b) MERREREE®)

(c)

KRBT A(E BT B ME B DR B 1]
=~ EEBAFLYETBRRNERR
BE - BfE WARXHNRESEER
HIET -~ AEFRRR - fAET RBBERER IR
EREERMEEEREEXSTBERATD
BEENSEHEMEARSERMIEL - /7
SHERTEREEERBATRGEREME
BRREEE R B EREEMFHE R
o BRBERAIEARNZEMEFTEE -

At RAAEBRIZSEEER - WE5
BETHETEFBERETNZNE &
BTN I A RERR - W @ EH A ET Y
ERTHE A LR RAR B EZE - Al
FIAMERERT &9 HA R R R R HRR RERR

FREEBHERMAKEAMBRE LR
ELHM BRI BB E O HE R A
ERMIEE34 5 -

MEXRARDBRRER

MEBARAXAREZEFHNER - BAE
B AR — BRI LGS BRI
WEZEB R &R - QIR - FF b
IR E R RRR A TENEERSEE -

f 8 A BIRE i 15 A 1 Bl R I R BF A
RAMBRRA BEEHELLEAS
Bl FERAARHENE®RER S k&
BEARRENRSMELNERNRERE
Mo BREREAVBRRE T A @E
o EBARBIENRZAELNARER
EERERERKSEARM T EE - K
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT AR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBETHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FE2EEFEE®
(c) MBLARRDBIRRERS (@)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

74

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between minority interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority,
are charged against the Group’s interest except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(k)).

DY RES W IFAA R A EESEA
MEBAREZEAESNEENBARE
EFERD - MARE L TR RZEE
=R A A E R IMER - BB ARE
EEEIRSHEaBATAVBRAGEESR
MENEE - PBRRAERARNGAEE
BERANERDE NEAQ B RRESE
@O RIIR - ARBEEARN D BARE
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ENRREGARBERER MEAZEKERT
RRORTIBBRRESNARAR

o
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7
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3

A

MRLDBERREGEEEBBEEEHERQ
ARV RCHE - RIEBRR AR D MARER At
BIRREEEE A N EEED NG - B0
DEIRRRRNOAORB B NELEING
BmmEBERRS - KB LR HRIKE
a7 MmBERERMNEENETAKHE
#xm - BEEREAFHEEAENDEK
RELBERL -

ARBEERBERANMBERRRE R
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FESFTBEOR @)
(d) BERQT

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(d) Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
associate’s other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The equity method continues to apply until significant
influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

BERREREAEEAUNZARERE
EEERNPE BR2EMBRLEE)
R BEWIFEHRHAREHNEEEEOR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BERESTE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Goodwill

()

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefits from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)). In respect of an associate,
the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate and the
investment as a whole is tested for impairment whenever
there is objective evidence of impairment (see note 1(k)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Other investments in debt securities and equity interest

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt securities and equity interest, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associate, are as follows:

Investments in debt securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets.
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Cost includes attributable

1

FESFBOR @)
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(f)
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SETEUR (8)
(f) HEERSFRRERE @

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(f) Other investments in debt securities and equity interest

(continued)

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividend
and interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
note 1(qg)(viii) and (ix).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost less impairment losses.

Investments in equity interest that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note
1(k)).

Investments in debt securities and equity interest which
do not fall into any of the above categories are classified
as available-for-sale investment. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of monetary
items such as debt securities which are recognised
directly in the profit or loss. Dividend income from these
investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(q)(ix) and, where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(q)(viii). When these investments are derecognised
or impaired (see note 1(k), the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BIRBSE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g)

(h)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(k)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term
Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

(i) Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming cost
in respect of programming rights of presentation.
Expenditure on commissioned and contracted
programmes is amortised to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the licence period.
Programming library is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 1(k)).

(i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

)

(k)

Media assets

Media assets represent advertising rights which are the
costs of acquiring operating rights for the placement of
advertisements in advertising display panels in the PRC
and include any directly attributable costs of bringing
advertising display panels to their present condition
and location for their intended use. Advertising rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Advertising rights are amortised to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over 5 years, being the agreed periods
of use of the advertising right.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(k)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 1(k)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and
equity interest and other receivables

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
(other than investments in subsidiaries: see
note 1(k)(ii)) and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or fair value are classified as available-for-sale
investment and reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and
equity interest and other receivables (continued)

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in associate recognised using the
equity method (see note 1(d)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment as a whole with its
carrying mount in accordance with note 1(k)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(k)(ii).

For unquoted equity investment carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment loss
for equity interest carried at cost is not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and
equity interest and other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the assets’
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale debt securities and equity
interest, the cumulative loss that has been
recognised directly in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impariment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity interest
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BIRESTE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt securities and
equity interest and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— fixed assets;

— media assets;

— goodwill;

— programming library; and
— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

In addition, for goodwill,
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBHERIN BIREREE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

M

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill and unquoted equity interest
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out cost method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Accounts payable and other payables

(n)

(o)

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FE2EEFEE®

(o) Income tax (continued) (o) FB®i(s)

86

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exception to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.
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FESFTBEER @)
(o) FiB®i(s)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(0) Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or
the Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBEETRN

BRESE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Income from multi-media sales is recognised
when the related advertisements are telecasted or
commercials appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(ii) Income from bus interiors and bus exterior

advertising is recognised when the related

advertisements appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(iii) Media sales income from advertising on transit

vehicle shelters is recognised when the related

advertisements appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(iv) Fee income from media sales management and

administrative services is recognised when the

related services are rendered.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Signage production fees are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(vi) Income from advertising agency services is
recognised when the related services are rendered.

(vii) Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the merchandise have been transferred to the
customers. Revenue is stated net of trade discounts.

(viii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(ix) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established.

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BIRESTE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

®

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date
using the binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve). The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong Dollars
while that for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Company is
Hong Kong Dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items,
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign

including goodwill

operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity
which relate to that foreign operation is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHERIN BIRBREE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FE2EEFEE®
(v) Related parties (v) BEEATL

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is MABBREME - RTIERT  ZA

considered to be related to the Group if: TRWRANEENEEEAL

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through () ZATEREESHEEBR—HRZ
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group MR EEITEH ASESEAERRN
or exercise significant influence over the Group in MBREERRITEERNTE N X
making financial and operating policy decisions, or HEEGIALES
has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common (i) AEBEZATZHRES
control;

(ii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint (i) ZFATAAEENHE ARSI AEE
venture in which the Group is a venturer; SENENEEDE

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel (iv) ZATRASEESNAE NETR:D)
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family TEEHEKE kbt ALTHE
member of such an individual, or is an entity under oo X Bl A TS - FERIESI K
the control, joint control or significant influence of BEAFENER
such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred (v) AT AEGEF@RALHIE X
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control BRZEALTEG - EZREZEHHEKR
or significant influence of such individuals; or FENER %

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is (i) ZATAXEEXBAEEEREA
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any THWERNEENES MEMBERER
entity that is a related party of the Group. Tl -

Close family members of an individual are those family ERATHAERERNESETEETR

members who may be expected to influence, or be S ?E,Hﬂ—I%*i“Exﬁ/\j:Ti‘uZ)\tﬁ“

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the HREKE °

entity.



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

2 Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

e HKFRS 8, Operating segments

e HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements

e Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

e Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements — cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

e Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about financial
instruments

e HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBHERIN BIRBREE)

2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The amendment to HKAS 23 has no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements as the amendment was
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group. In
addition, the amendments to HKFRS 7 do not contain any
additional disclosure requirements specifically applicable
to the financial statements. The impact of the remainder of
these developments is as follows:

e HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based
on the way that the Group’s chief operating decision
maker regards and manages the Group, with the
amounts reported for each reportable segment being
the measures reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and making decisions about operating
matters. This contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on geographical areas. The adoption of
HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of segment
information in a manner that is more consistent with
internal reporting provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management, and has resulted in additional
reportable segments being identified and presented (see
note 12). As this is the first period in which the Group
has presented segment information in accordance with
HKFRS 8, additional explanation has been included in
the annual financial reports which explains the basis of
preparation of the information. Corresponding amounts
have been provided on a basis consistent with the
revised segment information.

e As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity shareholders in their
capacity as such have been presented separately from
all other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of income
and expense are presented in the consolidated income
statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or loss
for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform
to the new presentation. This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income and
expenses or net assets for any period presented.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Improvements to HKFRSs (2008) comprise a
number of minor and non-urgent amendments to a
range of HKFRSs which the HKICPA has issued as an
omnibus batch of amendments. Of these, the following
amendment has resulted in changes to the Group’s
accounting policies:

— As a result of amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in associates, impairment losses recognised in
respect of the associates and jointly controlled
entities carried under the equity method are no
longer allocated to the goodwill inherent in that
carrying value. As a result, when there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, the impairment
loss will be reversed. Previously, the Group allocated

in accordance

did not

In accordance

impairment losses to goodwill and,
with the accounting policy for goodwill,
consider the loss to be reversible.
with the transitional provisions in the amendment,
this new policy will be applied prospectively to any
impairment losses that arise in the current or future
periods and previous periods have not been restated.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee, rather than
as income. As a result, as from 1 January 2009, all
dividends receivable from subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, whether out of pre- or post-
acquisition profits, will be recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss and the carrying amount of the investment
in the investee will not be reduced unless that carrying
amount is assessed to be impaired as a result of the
investee declaring the dividend. In such cases, in
addition to recognising dividend income in profit or
loss, the Company would recognise an impairment loss.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in the
amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively
to any dividends receivable in the current or future
periods and previous periods have not been restated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REERTIN IRBEHE)

3 Turnover 3 ZEXEE
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media AEEFEREARDZHRB(IRBZEE])
sales and management and administrative services for XK BEEWMESIIIRERAIBESES
Multi-media On-board (“MMOB”), transit vehicle exteriors IEHIEREE BENITHRSE - U RBEBH
and interiors advertising businesses and the operation of HEEEWHEFIISG BN RES R
media advertising management services through marketing PINESEMESMN  KEHEEREEER
advertising spaces on transit vehicle exteriors, interiors, % ARBHESRERS

shelters and outdoor signages and the provision of advertising
agency services.

Turnover represents income from media sales and EEFENRREBEARENGE  REEBH
management and administrative services and advertising B BEERITERB AR ESRERBE DU
agency services, net of agency commission and rebate. A e
4 Other revenue and other net income 4 EAWARE MU FEE
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
Fr T
Other revenue Hethlg A
Sales of merchandise EmmiE & 8,243 5,420
Interest income B A 13,648 24,411
Sundry revenue Hb g A 721 744
22,612 30,575
Other net income Hit s F5E
Exchange gain bE 5 Uz 638 5,226
Reversal of provisions for production costs A ERR A D 3,528 =
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEERSE — (241)
4,166 4,985

26,778 35,560




5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

5 KREAEIEF
B B & M 2 HIRR

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Amortisation of media assets IHEe & E 406 406
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R & 1,957 1,887
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURNGT 28
retirement schemes HFK 1,000 614
Depreciation e 9,469 14,232
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FE W R R AR B & 18 10 414
Impairment loss of other non-current financial HEIERBeREE
assets BEEE 9,801 —
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within AR AFABHEED
five years RITE RTINS — 300
Operating lease charges METRE S H
— land and buildings — T REF 2,551 1,681
— audio and visual equipment — TER 3,185 600
— bus interior advertising spaces — B rERASESA 12,300 —
— bus exterior advertising spaces — BB EINBESN 9,183 —
Production, programming and marketing costs SUE - B7 B RIHEERK A
(included in other operating expenses) (GTAEM&EER) 24,643 20,894
Income tax in the consolidated income statement 6 JIRtREIERKAIAEH
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FINGEEERNHRES
represents:
2009 2008
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Current tax REAFIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the REERBNESH B
current year 3,502 3,274
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBRBEREE — (83)
3,502 3,191
Provision for the People’s Republic of China RE AREFMBE(NHE])
(“PRC”) income tax STl s 249 2,290
3,751 5,481
Deferred tax IEFE R IE
Reversal and origination of temporary it A= R A BB KRR
differences 703 1,293
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January MEAEL—HA—HH
resulting from a change in tax rate IRIEFR B AL SR 2 — 288
703 1,581
Income tax expense BBz 4,454 7,062
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT AR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBETHE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated income 6 JIIRGABRERNMER @
statement (continued)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FIRGRERBRNBIES @ (1)
represents: (continued)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year is AKEEHMBEBANESHBEDRBAFE
calculated at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) of the estimated HETERVABNA165% (ZTT )\ F ¢
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for the 16.5%) 5T & - R BB A RIMBIER]
subsidiaries in the PRC is charged at the appropriate RRAPBERTAERREE -
current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC.
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) REBAMEBHNENBEFEIEHET RN
profit at applicable tax rates: ¥R -
2009 2008
$’000 $’000
Fr Fr
Profit before taxation AL AT 2T 22,674 56,784
Notional tax on profit before taxation, MR BFIZZ AR
calculated at the rates applicable to profits MRl AE R E AR =
in the tax jurisdictions AEREERTIE 4,687 9,927
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAHB RSB TR £ 842 575
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERGMANTIRZE (1,953) (6,589)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREBENTIETE 1,142 1,868
Tax effect of distributable profits Al F 7K FO B i A R B FI Y
of associate HIBTE (227) 707
Withholding tax in respect of interest income B AR TENEL 304 350
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January MEARLH—A—BMIELT
resulting from a change in tax rate HIBE BRI E — 288
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFE (B8) T RiEE (57) 117
Others Eoth (284) (181)

Actual tax expense ERBIEMAS 4,454 7,062




EEdkn

BIEEB(RAEA)E 16115 R =R AR
EEEMEREENT

7 Directors’ remuneration 7

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules is

as follows:

2009
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
e
p=3:1 RINETE
EEHe REF BETEAT iR st
$'000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
T Fx T F T
Executive Director HITES
Alex MO Tik Sang Eylas 55| 1,400 534 12 2,001
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak PRIEE L 66 — — — 66
Winnie NG hsatE 100 — — — 100
YUNG Wing Chung KA 108 — — — 108
Anthony NG fhokiE 55 — — — 55
MAK Chun Keung 2R 55 — — — 55
John Anthony MILLER nEE 55 — — — 55
Edmond HO Tat Man {A[3EE L 55 — — — 55
Independent Non-Executive &M IEHI(T
Directors =
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HRBEL 106 — — — 106
HUI Ki On % 40 — — — 40
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung ZREBL 118 — — — 118
Professor Stephen CHEUNG RERHIF
Yan Leung 82 — — — 82
895 1,400 534 12 2,841
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEETIN IRBEHE)

7 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7 EFEHE @
2008
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
e
AR RIREHE
EEHE NAg BIBTEAL HR wEt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive Director HITES
Alex MO Tik Sang ey ik 39 997 534 9 1,579
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak PRAEEE L 66 — — — 66
Michael WONG Yick-kam e 83 — — — 83
Winnie NG* L Elis 61 1,671 80 — 1,812
YUNG Wing Chung AxE 20 — — — 20
Anthony NG fhsxE 55 — — — 55
MAK Chun Keung 2 ifRo8 55 — — — 55
Andrew SO Sing Tak ER A= 23 — — — 23
John Anthony MILLER w2 43 — — — 43
Edmond HO Tat Man Al 3¢ 12 — — — 12

Independent Non-Executive XM IEH{T

Directors BE
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HR®REL 93 — — — 93
HUI Ki On FE% 93 — — — 93
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung TREBLT 78 — — — 78
721 2,668 614 9 4,012
* Ms Winnie NG had been re-designated from executive director to * HEBLXLTEZEEN\FT+AT=ARHRTESAT
non-executive director with effect from 13 October 2008. RIFPITES -
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EeM&AtL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one AEEaMEALTPEE—R(ZZEZENF : @
(2008: two) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed BVES ZESHMERMFE7HE - EH%MUE
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the (ZZZNF : A )G ATHINE 258
other four (2008: three) individuals are as follows: HIT
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
Fr Tt
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e RN EMEA 4,702 3,053
Retirement scheme contributions RONETEIfER 48 35
4,750 3,088
The emoluments of the four (2008: three) individuals with the ZNA(ZZZENF  ZZ2)Eae ATHB
highest emoluments are within the following bands: EHWOT
Number of individuals
AE
2009 2008
$Nil — $1,000,000 BRI — AB#1,000,0007C 1 1
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 751,000,001 — 7&¥1,500,0007T 3 2
9 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 9 AREREEMLERT
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders AARIBRRELGEERINBE -2 REE
of the Company includes a profit of $16,834,000 (2008: 16,834,000 LB F(ZZEZE)\F: B
$38,183,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 38,183,0007T) © AT AR G BB EHREK
statements of the Company. WYEH EIE o
10 Dividends 10 &
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) AFERAFERATRRNKE !
Company attributable to the year:
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
Fr T
Final dividend proposed after the balance REHEAREZD KRR ES
sheet date of HK1.41 cents per share BRASEE 1410 (ZTT)N\F:
(2008: HK5.00 cents per share) FREE®S5.001L) 14,063 49,868
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BIRBSE)

10 Dividends (continued)

(a)

(b)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year: (continued)

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous year, approved
and paid during the year:

10 &8

(a)

(b)

(&)
KEEERNGRAQITBRRNEKE : (@)

ERERSERRKBEN LELEERNSEAT
BRERE :

2009 2008
$'000 $’000
Fr T
Final dividend in respect of the previous ERF A& KRR
financial year, approved and paid during E—BBFEERPREER
the year, of HK5.00 cents per share PEEES 00Nl (ZZETN\F
(2008: HK5.00 cents per share) FAZE®S5.001L) 49,868 49,868
Special dividend in respect of the previous BERE A RIRER
financial year, approved and paid during E—HBFEEFRIRESR
the year, of $Nil per share BT (T )\F:
(2008: HK3.88 cents per share) TR S #3.881) — 38,698
49,868 88,566

11 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $14,016,000 (2008: $42,615,000) and
the weighted average of 997,365,332 ordinary shares
(2008: 997,365,332 shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008.

11 SlREH

(a)

(b)

BRERER
BRERBFZBREAR G L BIKRERE
5B H B8 14,016,000 (ZEF )\ £ :
7B #42,615,00070) R F A LD #ITE B
B AN #E F 5 #997,365,332 % (=TT N
4 1 997,365,332 % )5t E o

EREBEER
BHE2_ZZAFLAR_ZEZT)N\F+A
=+—HLEFE ARRTEALBEES
FEMNBETERR -



12 Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments:

: Provision of media sales and management
services

Hong Kong

Mainland China : Provision of media sales and management

services
There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and non-
current assets and liabilities, respectively, which are directly
managed by the segments.

12

DR
AEBZEEREEY - RERDEERK
FERBEMAARESSRTREEABEA

B2RER A B HR - REBEH# B
Tﬁﬁflaﬁiﬁ"* :

BB CRPLALRE 8 I B IR AR A
REIARE - RREREHE REERE

2RO AL BETHE -

AAEDERIREDEDBERMNE - AEE
E’m?&TTEﬁZEﬁAE&MT% EEEZERD
EEES

WARZHTIR2EZE
ZENHAEEN ST ERNZED AR EEER
EREEMSI BN BN EE2®ROED -

ABREMARSRIFEREE

BERBED
B DEEKER -

& ’:JT

iy ,ﬂlbi

&

FNU»
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

12 Segment reporting (continued) 12 HEbwRE )
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the HE-_ZTZNFR-_ZFZEN\F+-_A=+—H
year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is set out below. IEFE  AEBZHRHIBEREIIAT -

(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets

(@ EHRIBERA - BRREE  EERE

104

and liabilities: &
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
EB RE KR @t
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tr T Tr T
Revenue from external customers — RESNPEERBA 194,082 141,593 2,279 6,819 196,361 148,412
Other revenue and other At ARE A
net income W&FE 8,553 5,456 2,302 327 10,855 5,783
Inter-segment revenue DEFE%A — — — — — —
Reportahle segment revenue EHAPUA 202,635 147,049 4,581 7,146 207,216 154,195
Reportahle segment EBSHBI/
profit/(loss) (&) 40746 25291  (21,084) 12,367 19,662 37,658
Interest income FIBMA — — 56 93 56 93
Depreciation and amortisation REEHERESE
for the year 8,722 13,681 1,002 693 9,724 14,374
Impairment loss of accounts R ERR
receivable 10 414 — — 10 414
Impairment loss of other non- AtnBeREE
current financial assets REER — — 9,801 — 9,801 =
Reportahle segment assets 2HIHEE 470,611 503,016 371,666 391,266 842,277 894,282
(Including interest in associate) (BEREEARER) — — — 256,926 — 256,926
Additions to non-current segment  ERIEREI S BEEH
assets during the year RE 10,022 57 739 71 10,761 128
Reportable segment liahilities ERIHEE 46,511 35,455 3,188 4,817 49,699 40,272



12 Segment reporting (continued) 12 HEb RS )
(b) The Group’s reportable segment revenues and liabilities (b) AEEALHAIBUARBBEHEHERES
are equal to the consolidated total revenues and KAREBHRAE  ERSHBRBIZIEER
liabilities. Reconciliations of reportable segment profit EEHEROT

or loss and assets are as follows:

2009 2008
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Profit or loss BRI EE
Reportable segment profit 2R EBEF 19,662 37,658
Other revenue and other net income E AU A R E b U ZF 58 15,923 29,777
Finance costs WMIsER — (300)
Unallocated head office and corporate RFDEABIHER R
expenses ((=E5-gu (12,911) (10,351)
Consolidated profit before taxation T E BRI T 22,674 56,784
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EMNEBEE 842,271 894,282
Other non-current financial assets HthERFemEE 16,043 —
Unallocated head office and corporate assets ROBRHEERDEEE 546 437
Consolidated total assets LEEERE 858,866 894,719

TiEI IR AR AT 2009 ANNUAL REPORT —EZE H EF IR

A

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED B%

10

(3]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REERTIN IRBEHE)

13 Fixed assets 13 BEE&E
The Group
F&EE
Audio Hardware
and visual and Furniture Leasehold Motor
equipment software and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
YERRE BRREHS GRREE  HENEEE RE @
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr Fr Tr T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 R-ZE\E-RA—B&RF 195,321 1,277 616 — 2,166 199,380
Exchange adjustments [ 3¢ 5% — 1 8 — 121 130
Additions R 57 235 111 — — 403
Disposals i (9,881) — — — — (9,881)
At 31 December 2008 RH=ZTZ/\E+-A=+—H 185,497 1,513 735 — 2,287 190,032
At1January 2009  R=EEnE—f-H 185,497 1,513 735 - 2,287 190,032
Additions NE 8,482 842 659 1,038 — 11,021
Disposals HE (29,222) — (8) — — (29,230)
At 31 December 2009 A=ZENF+=A=1—H 164,757 2,355 1,386 1,038 2,287 171,823
The Group
F&E
Audio Hardware
and visual and Furniture Leasehold Motor
equipment software and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
YERE ERREH BRREE  HENERE "E st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr Tr Fr Tr T
Accumulated RIHER

depreciation and RESSE:
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2008 R=ZF/\E—A—H 170,884 920 498 — 1,210 173,512
Exchange adjustments [ 3 5% — — 5 — 68 73
Charge for the year —~ ER#E 13,681 249 37 — 265 14,232
Written back on HEREE

disposals (9,640) — — — — (9,640)
At 31 December 2008 W=ZZ/\F+-A=+—H 174,925 1,169 540 — 1,543 178,177
At1January 2009  RZZENF—A-H 174,925 1,169 540 - 1,543 178,177
Charge for the year FRNE 8,444 191 310 259 265 9,469
Written back on HERREE

disposals (29,222) - (8) — — (29,230)
At 31 December 2009 A=EENF+-A=+—H 154,147 1,360 842 259 1,808 158,416

Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2009 R=ZZNF+-A=1—H 10,610 995 544 119 479 13,407

At 31 December 2008 HW=ZE/\F+=A=+—H 10,572 344 195 = 744 11,855
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14 Media assets

14 RBEE

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
$’'000 $'000
Fr T
Cost: PR
At 1 January H—A—H 2,030 1,923
Exchange adjustments e 7 AR — 107
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 2,030 2,030
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At 1 January KR—HA—H 1,252 801
Exchange adjustments e 5 AR — 45
Amortisation for the year F Y 406 406
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 1,658 1,252
Net book value: FRMEF(E:
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 372 778
15 Goodwill 15 B8
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Cost: B
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HBHEk+=—A=+—H 12,487 12,487
Accumulated impairment losses: REtREEE:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEk+=-—A=+—H 12,487 12,487
Carrying amount: RREE:
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H — —

Management carried out an impairment assessment against
goodwill in 2006 and considered that the estimated future
cash flows generated from the cash-generating units (“CGU"),
media advertising agency and advertising design and
production in Shanghai, were less than the carrying value of
the goodwill and fixed assets of the CGU. Therefore, goodwill
with a carrying amount of $12,487,000 was fully impaired
and charged to profit or loss in 2006.

ERER_FTTNFHRBFELRENG R
RASEEEM([ReELEM ) (R LBNE
BESRIE  BEERREE) MEENMETR
FREERESNRREELBEUNBELREETE
EMREE - Bt - lREEAE 12,487,0007T
NEEBEE2ERETE ST NFHEFR

B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBHERIN BIREREE)

16 Non-current and current prepayments

Non-current and current prepayments consist of advance
payments for concession and rights for advertising and media
programme placement on transit vehicles and transit network
furniture for the period from 2002 to 2012.

17 Investments in subsidiaries

16

17

B MR EN AN R
ERBERBEANREREE T _FE_
- _FHRANEEEH AT ERBRLERNE
&R EREREER B B BUER AR o

The Company

NG|
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
T Tt
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD RE 62,835 62,835

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note
1(c) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial

statements.

Particulars of
issued and paid

TREBHMBRBNER - REHEBI - M
R RIS A E A -

BT I 188 2 B9 AR BT 21 1(c) P FE 35 B9 &2 722 11l FfY
BRE EXBECHARNEBPBRRALZS

| s
=T H o
Al 7

Attributable
equity interest (%)

Place of incorporation/ up capital PR (Bth)
Name of company operation ERTR direct indirect  Principal activity
ARHBH BRI EEhE EHERAFE HE BE FEEER
AdSociety Advertising Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
Agency Limited B BT BEER
AIBEDELERAR
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin US$100 — 60 Provision of media sales service
Islands/Hong Kong 100%7T for advertising on transit vehicle
EBRLHE/BA shelters
REREBHRERBZELN
R HE R
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100  Provision of media sales service
Bk BRI for advertising on transit vehicle
exteriors
REXESHEFIMIEEN
R SHE R
CityVision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 90 Dormant
B 7#1#10,0007T RS ES



17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of
issued and paid

17 MYBREIRE

Attributable
equity interest (%)

Place of incorporation/ up capital PRI (B2th)
Name of company operation BRTR direct indirect  Principal activity
ARER EMRY e EHRRAFE =t BE FEEK
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin USs$1 — 100  Holder of the registered design
Islands/Hong Kong IE and patent in relation to cyber
BRI/ BB bus stops
FEERERE MRS R
EVi
Expert Plus Holdings Limited The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong IE REZR
KBRS/ AE
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Dormant
B #%%10,0007T Tmax
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Dormant
B #%%10,0007T Tmay
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Dormant
B BT Eex
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B BT REBTRDMEERESR
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing) The PRC US$500,000 — 100  Provision of media advertising
Company Limited el 500,000% 7T agency service and design and
(limited liability company) production of advertisements
BAERES (R) BRAR REERRESKERER
(BREEAR) B Rt HEE
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B BT REBTRDmEEER
RoadShow Media Holdings Limited  The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong IE REER
KBRS/ AE
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100  Provision of media sales and
Bk ok management services for

advertising on transit vehicle
interiors and shelters and for
MMOB business

REXESHERADRIEES
BEARRBZEE XK
R HE REE RS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 17 WEBRARKRE @)

110

Particulars of
issued and paid

Attributable
equity interest (%)

Place of incorporation/ up capital PR (Bath)
Name of company operation BRTR direct indirect  Principal activity
ARERB BRI g BB RAFE =84 BE FEEK
RoadShow Productions Holdings The British Virgin US$1 — 100  Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong Kong IESH REZR
EBELHE /%
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Events production and Production of
N BT content for MMOB systems
HRSMERZERDSEREARAR
RoadShow Resources Limited The British Virgin US$1 100 — Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong IEY REER
KBRS/ AE
RoadVision Holdings (China) Limited The British Virgin Us$1 — 100  Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong IESH REZR
EBELHE/ A
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Us$2 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 2ET REER
KBRS/ EE
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong IE REER
RBRAES/BE
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong e REZR
EBELHE /%
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100  Provision of employment agency
B BT services
REBERN IR
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 95 Dormant
B 7##10,0007T TEex
Shanghai Yingte Consulting The PRC RMB1,236,000 — 68 Investment holding
Company Limited (sino-foreign B AE1,236,0007T REZR

co-operative joint venture)
HRBREAERAR
(FOMEIEEERHE)



17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of
issued and paid

17 WEBRARRE @)

Attributable
equity interest (%)

Place of incorporation/ up capital PRI (B2th)
Name of company operation BRTR direct indirect  Principal activity
AREHE BRLEAVE-E 3L BRERAFEE ¢ BE IEER
Shanghai Yafei Advertising The PRC RMB600,000 — 51 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited (limited HE AR™600,0007T agency service and design and
liability company) production of advertisements
LAGEREEERAR %ﬁﬁ%%@)%ifﬁiiﬁﬁi&
(BREFERTA]) BE R R E
Smart Media Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Dormant
BEARAR 0 BT ez
18 Interest in associate d=WNSIE-
The Group
REE
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
Fr T
Share of net assets EIEEEFE — 135,657
Goodwill EES — 14,496
Loans to associate NN 6 — 95,714
Amount due from associate FE st & A R FRIR — 11,059
— 256,926
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBHERIN BIRBREE)

18 Interest in associate (continued) 18 BN RIS ()
(a) Particulars of the associate (a) BFEDTIMES

Set out below are the particulars of the associate which
is an unlisted corporate entity and principally affected
the results or assets of the Group as at 31 December

UATE#HIR-_FZNF+_A=1+—HE
M’“Tmuili'axﬁﬁé*ﬂji%ifimmﬁ
EE WTBFEAEENEELEE -

2008.
Form of business Place of incorporation  Attributable indirect
Name of associate structure and operation equity interest (%) Principal activity
ALk
BEARERE EBEBRA SRR L R S B (BZk) TEXK
AdSociety Daye Advertising  Sino-foreign equity The People’s Republic ~ 40.9 Provision of full range of
Company Limited joint venture of China advertising services

AIBREHAXEERRAA HIAEKELRE REARANE

During the year ended 31 December 2009, one of
the joint venture partners subscribed for an additional
16.8% equity interest in the enlarged registered capital
of the associate. The transaction was completed on
28 September 2009 and the Group’s equity interest in
the associate has been diluted from 40.9% to 32.7%,
resulting in a gain on deemed disposal of $177,000.

Following the further dilution of the equity interest in the
associate and the change in the composition of the Board
of Directors of the associate, the Group was no longer in
a position to exercise any significant influence over the
investee. In this circumstance, equity accounting has not
been adopted and the carrying value of the investment
in associate is reclassified as an unlisted available-for-
sale equity interest since the date on which significant
influence ceased.

(b) Loans to associate (b)

At 31 December 2008, the loans to associate were
unsecured, carried interest ranging from 5.58% p.a. to
7.47% p.a. and were not expected to be settled within
one year. The loans to associate were neither past due
nor impaired.

REZHEESRS

RBE_FTTZNFT_A=1+—RHLHF
T RARBERHABEREQRKLEA
MR AEIN16.8%KE - ZER S
RZZZEAFAA-LTNABRER WA
SERBERANBREHRI0I%#EE
327% ZEBRELENRSGELE LK
177,000 Tz o

%

EH@%%’AT%%%&”—*%%&HﬁﬁM/‘T
ExedKEYR AEETHLS iﬂﬁ
i\AﬂéifﬂTiK?&;ﬁ RIS
T REEFDALEERY &EEKE/
BRIFEHE  BERRREREN DA

RIE TR E A -

- =
ERREER  RFENKE58% FE7.47%
AR WIEHSAER —FAWD - BER
RV E SR e A e H IR R B -



18 Interest in associate (continued)

(b) Loans to associate (continued)

(c)

At 31 December 2008, the Group provided a loan of
RMB22,858,000, equivalent to $25,830,000 to the
associate through a designated deposit/loan arrangement
where a subsidiary of the Company placed a pledged
deposit of RMB22,858,000, equivalent to $25,830,000,
with a bank in the PRC which the bank on lent the
proceeds to the associate. The bank has no obligation to
repay any principal or interest in case of default by the
associate. The loan was repaid in November 2009.

Amount due from associate

At 31 December 2008, the amount due from associate
was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment, but not expected to be recovered within one
year. The amount was neither past due nor impaired.

19 Other non-current financial assets

18 Bt N Al
(b) BiERARIER®

RZZBEZNFE+ZA=+—8 A&HEHRA
B N RIRE -2 A AR 22,858,0007T
(FZ 78 25,830,000 ) I E K » %
/\/A]—ﬁiﬁﬁ SHER S ERZHEL -
ZKEIE’]—FEJWE AIMA) — R R AR B A AR
117 W E | #1758 A R % 22,858,000 7T
(*H#m,%mﬁzmsoooom' iM% 877 Al
MBS R RIEEZATS A - W& QA
HREN  ROTESTEETANEASHK
%\JE cREEFER-_ZETNET+—AE

o

fRld

(c) FEWERE NRIFIE

_E’EJ\EWL R=+—H  EYEE
BAIREAEEMR 2EREBEER
o R ER —FAKE - ZRIAL
BN HERE -

ﬁ’E;EUILEﬁ % F

The Group
AEME
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
T T
Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at cost  3Z/R{E %I BRAIFE T A i & Ae 4 133,570 =
Loans to investee WIE RRIER 69,884 =
Amount due from investee FEM I 1 B A R FRIE 12,167 =
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value BER R EEYERENITHEEER
(listed outside Hong Kong) B (BBEINET) 16,043 =
231,664 —
(a) Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at cost (a) RFEFIRRAIE £l it HERE

Available-for-sale equity interest is reclassified from
interest in associate at the carrying value of the Group’s
investment in the investee of $143,371,000 at the date
when the Group ceased to have significant influence over
the investee.

AHHERERAEBITBHRIRERRES
BAFEZH RASEREREQRANKRE
Y BR EIE 5 % 143,371,000 T B B & A &) #E 25
B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BIRESTE)

19 Other non-current financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at cost

(continued)

At 31 December 2009, the unlisted available-for-sale
equity interest is individually determined to be impaired
on the basis of an adverse change in the market in which
the investee operates which indicates that the Group’s
investment in the investee may not be fully recovered.
Impairment loss on unlisted available-for-sale equity
interest of $9,801,000 (2008: $Nil) is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
(k) ().

Loans to investee

Loans to investee are unsecured, carry interest ranging
from 5.31% p.a. to 7.47% p.a. and are not expected to
be settled within one year. The loans are neither past
due nor impaired.

Amount due from investee

Amount due from investee is unsecured, interest free
and has no fixed repayment terms, but is not expected to
be recovered within one year. The amount is neither past
due nor impaired.

Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value
The listed debt securities are issued by corporate entities

with credit ratings ranging from A-to A.

All of the available-for-sale debt securities are due for
repayment in 2014.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

HiIERBSEMEE @)
BREREHIRNIE LT AHHERE®

R-ZFBTFAF+-_A=1+—8 " FLmaf

Eﬂx%lf&‘%&&é A48 & P HE T 45 B S )
PRTAEERPIRERANKEA TR

2l o M B B E A% TORE - é‘ELrhT1 H
EHMZE*}EMQJ%TE 7 #9,801,000L(ZEZE N
¢ BT IR 1K) R B R N S

HWREQTERK
BRERRERBEER HFHNEL31%E

747%GHE - WHEATEN —FAEE - ZE
FRO e B e H R

IR E A RFHRIE
R R E R BIFIALSEEA - 28 REETE
B TE?EﬁHTQEé—iWH&Z@ ZRIEIL

B R HBRRE -

BEARBEIRNITHEHEERES
FTHAEBESAEENANTFA-ZANBER
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20 Inventories 20 &
All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise and FrEREAAERENm - WEBARR —FR
are expected to be recovered within one year. U@ o
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as BRATTHNGFEEEBENT
follows:
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
T Tt
Carrying amount of inventories sold BHEFEREE 5,768 3,489
Reversal of write-down of inventories 5 & #MUR (263) (204)
5,505 3,285
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21

22

Inventories (continued)

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years
arose due to an increase in the estimated net realisable value
of inventories.

Amounts due from/(to) group companies

(@) The amount due from ultimate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

(b) The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment but
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months of the
balance sheet date.

(d) The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and
represents normal trade receivables and payables.

Accounts receivable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that is
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
at the balance sheet date are as follows:

20

21

22

FE @

MR FENMEF AT 2FFEEM - AN BESF

VR )7 B MOBL A T AR -

FEU (e ) &£ B R B 5RIA

(@) EWMEHKERARFIARELRR
1 [E) TE B R o

®ER

(b) ENHBRRRELSEERR  RENERE

TEE R o

(c) EWMBRRFEAREERR  RENEE

E B \’ET?E\ES%(‘,ZE# At+=
fE& o

(ERERY

(d) W (FER) R R B AR KIEREE
B 28 AREBRKEE RFEk—R

BRI N -

& Y AR R

REEER - I8 3R (B S R E /O B R

REREDITEITAT -

The Group
AEH

2009 2008

$'000 $’000

Fx T

Neither past due nor impaired NP 4% 780 B s OB (E 23,883 9,749
Less than one month past due wEIDR—EA 19,145 8,040
One to two months past due A —=m1{EA 6,916 3,713
Two to three months past due mHARZE =& A 5,134 2,265
More than three months past due BHEERE=EA 2,123 2,118
57,201 25,885

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered
within one year.

Impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable
when the recovery of the amount is remote. At 31 December
2009, the Group’s accounts receivable of $10,000 (2008:
$414,000) was determined to be impaired. The impairment
loss is written off against the accounts receivable directly.

TEHIFT B FEUR R AT I — S A o

EAIRE S B A - BIRZEUER S8 MR
BEEE -R_ZTTAF+-_A=+—H &%
] ) 8 Y BR OB B 10,000 TT(Z B ZE N EF - 8

#414,0007T) EE RBIERIE © BEBERE

YR SRR B MBS o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

22

BIRESTE)

Accounts receivable (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

22 FEWERFRE)

3 4 760 5 2R B A B MK R 508 R R % AT HAY R
BREHENES -

S ERRERNRKRIAT HE TR AEE
BERFEBTENBILE S A - RIZBHE
K EEERCEHARZEERNERERY
AHBRERNE - RZEERDBR/T 2
Wm - MBARZSERIELRHERE A%
BRI A X FEREM RS o

considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 29(a) to the AEBERNEEBRENT BEHREME29() ©

financial statements.

EEMRITER
REBEARRMBARERARNBAR NS

23 Pledged bank deposits 23

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between the
subsidiaries of the Company and fellow subsidiaries, the TFHHFERSE MBAREREZERITAY
subsidiaries have provided bank guarantees issue in favour NREBEBRETERSE THEERKE  #1
of the fellow subsidiaries regarding their due performance NZERAZMB AR AXm AMBRITER - K
NEIFEFTE L A RITERRMARITEMRITER
751,200,000 C(ZZ T N\F - BEZT) -

and payment under the respective licence agreements. The
Company pledged bank deposits of $51,200,000 (2008:
$Nil) to the bank for the bank guarantees issued.

24 Bank deposits and cash 24 RITHFEFERE
The Group The Company
AEE b NS
2009 2008 2009 2008
$’000 $’000 $’000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Cash at bank and in hand RITEHREES 78,946 50,401 593 507
Bank deposits with original [REEAR B=1E AR
maturities within three months RITIF K 173,041 75,393 122,191 72,293
Cash and cash equivalents for the FAREIRSRERM S B
purpose of cash flow statement IR&ERIBELEEY 251,987 125,794 122,784 72,800
Bank deposits with original REIEIE AfEE=E A
maturities over three months RITFEK 195,947 408,105 145,098 295,105
447,934 533,899 267,882 367,905
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25 FEfSRRFK
REER - BNRAOREDITFIENOT ¢

25 Accounts payable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

The Group
AEME
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Due within one month — & A EHA 4,931 4,403

PR A AR AR — F R -

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within
one year.

26 JINERAEERBRIOMER
(@ JIIRGEEERBROFAHESR

26 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet

represents:
The Group
EE
2009 2008
$'000 $’000
Fr Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax AEEBRHFEH

for the year B 3,502 3,274
Provisional Profits Tax paid [EENEE wilkEY (2,222) (6,233)
1,280 (2,959)
PRC income tax payable FERTARBIFTS 401 551
1,681 (2,408)
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current tax recoverable A[U Bl 7S R A 18 — (2,959)
Current tax payable FERT AR IE 1,681 551
1,681 (2,408)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBHERIN BIRBREE)

26 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 26 JINERABERBERNMAER@®
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CHEIAEEHREEE,(AR) :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) A EEBRRNOCERANELERBEELEE
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the S (BE)BHERERANSBINT

movements during the year are as follows:

The Group
b4 ]
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of related
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BHERRE
HREES BBEE Hith it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
At 1 January 2008 R=ZT\F—H—H (4,214) 9,727 — 5,513
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss TEBHENEA/ (5%) 2,496 (3,370) (707) (1,581)
At 31 December 2008 RZFTN\F+=RA=1+—-H (1,718) 6,357 (707) 3,932
At 1 January 2009 RZZTNE—R—AH (1,718) 6,357 (707) 3,932
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ERENEA/ (BI%) 312 (1,732) n7 (703)
At 31 December 2009 RZFTNE+=A=1—H (1,406) 4,625 10 3,229
Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet: REEEEEBBERERNEEE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Net deferred tax assets R IB A = 55 3,802 6,227
Net deferred tax liabilities BT IE A RS (573) (2,295)
3,229 3,932
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26 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(o), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets of $10,400,000 (2008: $9,782,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $61,937,000 (2008:
$59,286,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation
except for an amount of $2,127,000 (2008: $Nil) which
will expire in the coming five years.

27 Equity settled shared-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2001 whereby the Directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company. The Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of ten years ending on 6 June 2011.

No options were granted during the year and there were no
outstanding options at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

26 JINGREBEABRNGHR @)

(c) EMRAMNELEBIREE :

BIEMFLOMEBHSEERK ARE
BrREHEEREETAATEDE TR
HEBEORRERBHAFN  wAE®
I 48 3t B 161,937,000 L(Z TN\ 4 :
5%?%%59 286,0007T ) M) 25t B IS B 1B R

% #10,400,0000(Z T Z )\ F @ B
9,782,0007E)E7uu}11§§§ o BTG E 1R
BEBITHEEGTERRE - HEEPE
#2,127,000 T(ZZEZNF : BEZL)H
RERAEFRNER °

27 DABREERORNRZS

ARRABRAE —HBBRES (%18 ]) - &5
2|JEA*?E?E—¢/\HJ:E§%%£W o Bt - AR
ANESEREANERFASEER (BREX
SEEMARNES)EMARBARR RN
BRE - SODBEERTRBEARBE - BAR
AEBENERN  ZEENARARSTE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT AR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

28 Capital and reserves 28 ‘A RFEES
(a) The Group (a) &x%EH
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RLARREL
Share Share  General Contributed Other  Fairvalue  Exchange  Retained Minority Total

capital  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
MEE HEBR

kx  ROEE -Riék EAERH HHRE fiff  AERE REEA &3t s REEE

$1000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000

iR R v v T R A v v A v T R o

At 1 January 2008 W=2%/\&-A-R 99737 531,769 238 (200) (605) — 11053 239999 881991 5219 887270
Dividends approved in respect A LEEE R AHRS
of the previous year - - - - = = —  (88566)  (88,966) —  (83,560)
Appropriation to general BAZ-REGE
TeSrve - - 601 - - - - (601) = = =
Total comprehensive income.~ AFE2ENEER
for the year — - - - — — 6,021 4615 48636 7107 55,743
At 31 December 2008 REF)E
tZA=1-A 99737 531,769 839 (200) (605) - 17074 193447 842061 12386 854447
At 1 January 2009 R-EENE-A-A 99737 531,769 839 (200) (605) - 17074 193447 842061 12386 854447
Dividends approved in respect AT LEERHAENRE
of the previous year - - - - - —  (49868)  (49,868) - (49868)
Dividends paid to minorty ~ BRFAHRENRE
interests - - - - - - — — —  (10.400)  (10,400)
Total comprehensive income.~ AFE2ENELER
for the year - - - - - (1200 (3112 14016 10784 4200 14988
At 31 December 2009 R-BERE
TZR=1-A 99,737 531,769 839 (200) (605) (120) 13962 157,595 802,977 6,190 809,167
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28 Capital and reserves (continued)

28 MAKHES @

(b) The Company (b) AT
Share Share  Contributed Retained
capital premium surplus profits Total
B A R H&E BRARR REEF 5t
$’000 $'000 $’000 $’000 $'000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2008 RZZTNE
—H—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 108,499 802,640
Dividends approved BRLFE
in respect of the BHERAR S
previous year — — = (88,566) (88,566)
Total comprehensive ~ AFEZ2EUZE
income for the year Fak el — — — 38,183 38,183
At 31 December 2008 R-—ZZT/N\F
+=—A=+—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 58,116 752,257
At 1 January 2009 R=ZTZTNF
—H—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 58,116 752,257
Dividends approved BHELFE
in respect of the EHERAR S
previous year — — — (49,868) (49,868)
Total comprehensive REEEHEME
income for the year wWER — — — 16,834 16,834
At 31 December R-ZBZhE
2009 +=—A=+—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 25,082 719,223
(c) Share capital (c) BAE
2009 2008
Number Number
of shares of shares
RO E &mH 28
'000 $’000 ‘000 $'000
T Fr T & T
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of BRB0.17TH
$0.1 each LR 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTREME:
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT AR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmAEETRN

BIRESE)

28 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(d)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are

entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981.

General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries of 10% of their net profit after tax,
based on the subsidiary’s PRC statutory financial
statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up capital
of the respective subsidiary.

(iii) Contributed surplus

(iv)

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange under the reorganisation in 2001
was transferred to contributed surplus. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
is available for distribution to shareholders.

Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the
premium was recognised directly in the shareholders’
equity.

28 BAKFEES @
(c) A&
TERFAEAEEBRTESTIRNK

=
/T

TEERARNARBRAG LERHAE —

BRAHE— I o Fi A BRI A2
BEEMEHEERSEN -

(d)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RESHHEERAR

KRG EE

B EEENERS ARG MAHERE
AHAIZE 150 R 167 kB FRE— NN\ —
FE(RBEFTRR -

— R

AEE BB R RIS ARENE
REANPFEEEMBBRRFENDF
BB F AR 10% BEA— MR -

— R R ARNEEET AR EER
EIREERHB R RN R

Eazs

BRE_ZZT-—FNEEEHE AR A
BMRAEENZERAR - REEEF
BERHBEMBERODBEARFARE_-F
T RBEAFEEBMEITH
BthmEE ZFEHRCRABERR
#he REARE-NN—FRAE)
HE - BRIARRAIRE TRIR -

Bt

AEER-_ZZ+FH-—FRAREMNBR
AIERE] — B - LAOB 1,211,000
TCHY (B YRS H 5T B8 2 &) KM-Vision
Limited &~ 59 8% HY A% #E - FTEE 4 )&
& &A% 605,0007T ° thEEINEE T)
NERR B HEEERRER
P RER o



28 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale debt
securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 1(f).

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(t).

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $87,717,000 (2008:
$120,751,000).

(viii)Included in the Group’s retained profits is an amount
of $58,304,000 (2008: $62,848,000), being
retained profits attributable to the associate.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group did not have
any bank borrowings. The Group had bank deposits and
cash balance as at 31 December 2009 amounting to
$447,934,000 (2008: $533,899,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

28 MAKHES @

(d)

(e)

HESNEERAZ®
v) AREEREE

ARBEREEERGEEARENT
HEEBRBEFAABEEHNRG

)

BB - WILRHEE 1(f) el & st
BIRIE -

(vi) IMNERE
INERERIEMERERBUINES

MBMROELZR - ZREHBIRE
BYAE 1) PR E AT IR BEIE

(vii) B £ 89 T 7 Rt
R-ZTTh&E+—_A=+—H 7%
KTYARBBRENFEESRELD
87,717,000 L(— T N\ F : B
120,751,0007%) °

Vi) A BRI RERNABREEGRZA
RIRE BB 58,304,000 T ( —ZEE

J\4F : B 62,848,0007T) °
BERER
ZKE@@?&ZKE’J%%‘EE%B%EZK%@
BESUE IBIRBISEMRE ) MBBRER
M7J<ﬂ?$aﬂf§m§uu&ﬁ&i‘%i{;% AR
BAERANRE BB HRFEIRMEDR

N AE MRS E R M o

TENFR_ZFEENF+_A=1+—
EETEMAMBRTEE - AEER
CNFE+ A=+ —BHRTERR
Bk A 447 934,000 TT(ZZ T )\
4 ¥ 533,899,0007T) °

i 4H *>F fH

EI
—FE
REk

REEESRETEHEEEARERAGS
REER  LERSRELRIEN T AIEH
FER R S BB KT HE R AT A& AR 2R
RES RARFE 2 MBS T - W E RS
RIS L HEREBIELTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBHETRIN BIRBREE)

29 Financial instruments

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables and listed debt
securities. The Group has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long term strategic purposes. Transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are with
counterparties of sound credit standing and with whom
the Group has a signed netting agreement. Given their
high credit standing, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally granted
credit terms of 90 days while customers of merchandising
business either pay on delivery or are generally granted
credit terms of 30 to 90 days. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any licensed bank to fail to
meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of the respective assets in the
balance sheet. The Group has not provided any guarantee
which would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable
are set out on note 22.

29 £@MTA

AEENHEXEBRESELEEE  RYE
e FEREERR ZEEBEITHARNEE
TS E IR BUR RAB BIBR il o

(a) EERB

AEBENEERREIZRE BEHRRRE
KRR R EMEEES - REBER
—HEEERER  TeRBERELEER

iy o
AA

—RME  AEEERRUKRERZME
ﬁ)’ﬁﬁjé%&ﬁ(ﬁ‘jiﬁ,ﬁﬁ SREEMIMEI L&
BRoh) o HBRTESR T AN S EER
BEEFSNEFARAEECREREY
FREEEHEOALTET ERHEEFEER
BEE EREYTEHRAAMNEKESFH
FREBITHERS

AEEHMEEREBEETLRBEENT
FPETEBEETG AEE—METE
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29 Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries are
required to obtain the Company’s approval for activities
such as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and
settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

The remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities which are required to be repaid within
one year or on demand amounted to $47,445,000 (2008:
$37,426,000) and $234,817,000 (2008: $230,299,000)
respectively.

Interest rate risk

It is the Group’s policy to closely monitor the market
conditions and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy on
interest rate risk management in the light of the prevailing
market condition.

29 @ T AEm)

(b)

(c)

REE S EE

AEEETEEKLERAREAHGNA
TEE  BRESEFURREHANES
FEXRHEFSEEBEBERNETHE
FEKF - BIARBARRESTGNIAE -
AEENRRSEMERERDESS
B UBREAFZHNRSHEBEREE
ETHBRBRESRANAKESTEE W
REEEHORBHESFR -

ARBANTEBENEREMBARNRSR
B —RME > ARANMBRRARMN
ReRBRERE BEERRBHEBE
TERMHKERERF ARG ARF
e

o

REER  AEBMFHBEOIBHFER
ARAMETES BB EER —FRIR
DREFEIE) D B BB 47,445,000
T(ZZEZT )\ F: B#37,426,0007T) &
75 234,817,000 C(Z T N\ F : B
230,299,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

29 Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities at
the balance sheet date.

29 ®@IEm
(c) M=ZER @
(i) FIFREBHE

TRANFEENEEAN BAE
R TR E -

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BERERZE B FRF A=
% $’000 % $'000
Aot Fx A T
Fixed rate assets: BIEFIEEE
Loans to associate i ENCTN= 6 — — 7.5 95,714
Other non-current HEt3EneemEE
financial assets
— loans to investee —WIRERRIER 5.8 69,884 —
— available-for-sale — A EEE S
debt securities 5.0 16,043 —
Bank deposits RITFK 0.9 420,188 2.2 483,498
506,115 579,212
Variable rate assets: JEEFEEE
Cash at bank RITRE 0.3 65,110 1.8 26,976
65,110 26,976

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately
$533,000 (2008: $225,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would have decreased/increased
by approximately $633,000 (2008: $Nil) in response
to the general increase/decrease on interest rates.

(ii) BBEDH

R_TZhFE+=-_A=+—H " &t
FEL R R 100EE£S - &
HETAEHMEESHFTY  KEEW
KR EEN MRB AT H
H) 75 533,000 L (ZET)N\F « B
225,0007) ° FIR LR EF T
CHEHIGAERNEMIBDRE L, I
ME B 633,000 T( — BT )\4F : 8
BTIT) -



29 Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the balance sheet date. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest income of such
a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2008.

(d) Currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

29 @ T AEm@)
(c) FRE
(i) §REZH (&)

LAFERESTBRENEREER
BRABREPACEESHLREE
FReRIANAR(SAEEREE
FEHAABENXRRER) - AAKH
MBHREAEMN(RERERN) RFEA#E
BEWEMEYBHRONEES - &
REREEREEBMFE X
AR TEAMELNRZREN
TRk HASBEBRRZREN(REF
BaRMN RGARamEnanng
B ANMEEFHUNBBRANFE(L
FEELAEF c DWERE_TTN
FHARAER

(d) E¥ER
TREAVNAEERARREERIAERF
DEEBREMIIENEERBBENGE
AT RAENER AR

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed SNEREBE (RBUETHE)
in Hong Kong dollars)
2009 2008
usD RMB USsD RMB
EpH AR® e AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BT T BT T
The Group REEE
Other non-current financial EAMIERE L REE
assets 98,094 — — —
Bank deposits and cash RITFEREES 309,560 — 365,335 —
Amount due from associate  J&UYEE A R FIE — — 11,059 —
Loans to associate kNI~ £ — — 69,884 25,830
407,654 — 446,278 25,830
The Company /NG|
Bank deposits and cash RITERARRE 306,497 — 362,111 —

In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from inter-company receivables denominated in Renminbi
which is not the functional currency of either one of the
lender or the borrower. Such inter-company receivables
amounted to RMB124,557,000 as at 31 December 2009
(2008: RMB124,971,000).

o REBEHUAREGEE R
BRI A S )5I| BR &9 A &) FE R
HAEEMINERR - R-_TTAF+=
B=+—R8 %ZERAaHERFEZAR
B 124557000 (2T N\FE: AR
124,971,000 7%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REEETIN IRBEHE)

29 Financial instruments (continued) 29 @I Eum
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ERE)
The following table indicates how an increase in the TREMNEEBUATEE LB TERR
following currency against Hong Kong dollars at the BT SENAEBEREERZFTEA
balance sheet date would have increased the Group’s e Eb D °

profit for the year and other components of equity.

2009 2008
Effect on Effect on
Increase profit for Effect Increase profit for Effect
in foreign  the year and on other in foreign  the year and on other
exchange retained components exchange retained components
rate profits of equity rate profits of equity
HAREERF HEf UAEERF HH A
HNEEE RRBEAN ExEm INEER  RIRBEF RS
#y3 h HE 07 op=pli 0% iof-Z=d
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr Fr
The Group AEH
Renminbi AR 3% 4,245 — 3% 4,236 775
A weakening in the above currency against Hong Kong i B L AEHERREFE AUER
dollars by the same percentage at the balance sheet AOLTR A AREENAFEERF
date would have had an equal but opposite effect on MEMERBOFRESEERNFE -
the Group’s profit for the year and other components of
equity.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in HERESMINIBRERSIERLEEH R
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure £ WERAREFHEAEEMEENZ
those financial instruments held by the Group which LT A MZEIASAEERLEE
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet AEmEINERR  BEEERAQARIENE
date, including inter-company payables and receivables KA BER TN BB I EESER
within the Group which are denominated in a currency T REWERT - RIBRTEEMEE(LH
other than the functional currencies of the lender or RMER)ERAE - gt s - REBERR
the borrower, and that all other variables, in particular ETREMEREENTANESHEISTEH
interest rates, remain constant. In this respect, it is BITEETHWBEERELESTSATE - +
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong KA OMERBEAEEZTERENFA
dollar and the United States dollars would be materially AEIDNEEEETENRBRN RERNE
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the EE VEHREEAMBITEREBK
United States dollars against other currencies. Results of BILREZYA®R - T EER-FTETN
the analysis as presented in the above table represent an FAAKMER -

aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax and equity measured in their respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The analysis has been performed

on the same basis as for 2008.
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29 Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.

Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, require disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across three
levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair value
of each financial instrument is categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels
are defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

e |evel 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant
input is not based on observable market data

At 31 December 2009, the only financial instruments
of the Group carried at fair value were available-for-
sale debt securities of $16,043,000 (see note 19).
These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

29

SR T A

(d) E¥ERE)
ARBIIETE2EHHLBRNERE - fTE
B RARERINEZ ZE VBB BFEA
RIBFTHEMEREE ZINENEEE
170

(e) AAERE

(i) BAAEBEIKRYZHTA

BEMBHRELRBE7ROETAI 2
BTA: #FIZFZIBIAREBES
RABIFEFRERTANAAEE
HE-ZHEeMIANAREERES

REHZAABEAEMEEREX
WERESRBABETHIE ZS5H

RS -

. FIREEEMR)  KEEALE
TEMERTISRECRERE)
FATENAREE

o FE24: RARFATRIARERE
MEREXRAMEEERAE
VEESHERBEIERH SR
BENAERTEFENRAEE

o EIR(REFR  RAEMEZR
WABLFREAERTSHRE
MAERNETENRAEE

RZTEZhF+ZA=+—8 &%
EZRAABEIENE-—SHRIAR
At S BB E 5B 16,043,000 T
(RWE19) - ZETAEBR LI AR
BEESHEBNELE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29 Financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

29 #IEm

(e) AREE®E

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other (i) EHERAAEBEIEHZHBIT AN R
than fair value Bl
All financial instruments carried at cost or amortised Fr B A sk SH A AN B BR B 2 /i T
cost are carried at amounts not materially different BEmBEER-_ZZNER_ZZTNF
from their fair values as at 31 December 2009 and +ZA=+t—HBHMAREERETK
2008 except as follows: B RS - T OIERIN
(1) Amounts due from/to ultimate holding company, (1) B EAAEBERARRNR
fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries and investee BIERE N T REWNB AR - W
of the Group and the Company are unsecured, BRARIEKIEE AR NEAEER
interest-free and have no fixed repayment A -2EREETERM  ER
terms. Given these terms it is not meaningful to LEBRR BREAREEESR
disclose their fair values. K e
(2) Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest of @ ELmaHEEERESE
$133,570,000 (2008: $Nil) does not have 133,570,000 L (ZEZ )\ F : &
a quoted market price in an active market BRI )WEERMISZHRE - WH
and therefore its fair value cannot be reliably ARBETEASETE - ARG
measured. It is stated at cost less impairment HHIRAARBEE B o
losses at the balance sheet date.
(f) Estimation of fair values ) DAREEMMEET

AfHEEMEBESFNIABEIRE
REE BRI ™I5ER (RN ZK

Fair value of listed available-for-sale debt securities is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date

without any deduction for transaction costs. A)ETE ©
30 Commitments 30 A&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREE

R-ZEZAF+_A=+—H AEEHH
THRBERTEESBNEREEL R
PR RS R R R B

At 31 December 2009, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase of fixed
assets not provided for in the financial statements:

2009 2008

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Authorised but not contracted for EREBRIDARIIEHNE 173,000 173,000
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30 Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of property and equipment are payable as

30 AEfEwE)
(b) R&EHEEE

RZZZNF+-_A=1+—0 AEER
BERMERREOTAZHELEHER
NERKFZEESLBENT

follows:
2009 2008
$’000 $’000
Fr FT
Within 1 year —FR 6,438 1,659
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEERFRA 14,879 2,430
21,317 4,089

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
6 months to 5 years, with an option to renew the leases
when all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not
include any contingent rentals.

Other commitments

Certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media sales
management services for MMOB business, (ii) to
conduct media sales agency and management business
on selected bus shelters, and (iii) to solicit advertising
business in respect of the interior and exterior panels
of the bus body of the KMB buses, have been granted
to the Group, the respective licences expire in periods
ranging from 2012 to 2014. Under such licences, the
Group has committed to pay licence fees or royalty fees
at a pre-determined percentage of the net advertising
rental received. The future minimum guaranteed licence
fees or royalty fees are as follows:

(c)

AEERBEEHEEAMERRMEG - H
EVFRBMANERELSF  LAINEHNE
BERIGERREN  HETBEEMHA
B -

H i

AEEERET () RADZHREXHRERY
EREEETERE  (WVRABECLRES
RHUEBHERBRERER - R
EELTESFRMESETESEHNE
i BNRHERMNF R —FEC
T-NEHEIE - REBEZFRHE K
SECAGEMEERSESFENTEL
BEEEOLBNRHFERENE - KKK
EREFTFEREMNENT

2009 2008

$’000 $'000

Fr T

Within 1 year —FRA 105,405 39,091
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEERFA 221,565 108,557
326,970 147,648
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132

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments under which the Company’s subsidiaries
are governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as
follows:

AEBMBESBCRHMERESHENEN ) AE
RBEBERGO)MEZMNES R ZRHIEA
Bestal([REeTE]) -  RESTEETHE
HBPGRIRFTE] - ABUEEHREEIE - RiFA
HEertd EXTHEESHAFHESNES
BRRAS% MEK - MBAEBRKRANERA
Y5 20,000 7T © FHEIHR AR -

31 Employee retirement benefits 31 EERKEF

RIBHBEVER  AEEZ2EAREANRFKNE
REMB T BRFERNEERASE - A%
B EIFIBNT

Contribution rate

=

Administrator Note  Beneficiary 2009 2008
EEA M T&EA
Shanghai Social Security Fund Management Center (i)  Employees

T EREBEESERFRL {=3=1 22% 22%
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Center (ii) Employees

R EREBRESEREPL (== 20% 20%

Notes: i

(i) Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required
to make a contribution to the scheme at 22% and 8% respectively of
the employees’ relevant income.

(i) Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required
to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and 8% of a pre-
determined amount.

() REZTE AEEEEESSFIAELHESENMEES
RAM A 22% K 8% B3R

(i REZFTE - AEEEEESHFIAERESENELE
FEFRER 20% B 8% BOHFR



32 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the EIN
following related party transactions during the year:

32 AAEALHEAR

BRI EMIODABENRL S LG
CAEERFABATEREALTORS

Income/(expenses)
A (BX)
Note 2009 2008
B E $'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Management and administration fee income & RITHEUR A (i) 13,339 15,619
Licence fee for conducting MMOB business B ZIEE EBEHE (ii) (18,422) (18,324)
Licence and royalty fees paid for the right MHEREREWHIRES
to sell advertising space on transit vehicle B SR RER 8
shelters ﬁgﬁ—kﬁiﬂg (iii) (13,788) (10,577)
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising BB ERADES A
business at advertising space on transit }E? &S S REFIR
vehicle interiors T (iv) (12,300) —
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising FA% 38 B2 & 8 5 I 2B R 45 AL
business at advertising space on transit EITESEEBHER
vehicle exteriors T (v) (9,183) —
Rental expenses HEEH (vi) (4,479) (1,734)
Management fee expenses EEEBHRY (vii) (16,500) (14,144)
Guaranteed advertising income REFEESEWRA (viii) 19,774 9,785
Service fee paid for logistic function P& BRI IRIS & (ix) (490) (490)
Key management personnel remuneration FEEBAEME (x) (6,973) (8,814)
Interest income from associate REHE AR EF S A (xi) 3,376 4,999

Notes:

(i)  Fee income was earned for the provision of media sales management (i)
and administrative services to a subsidiary of TIH, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The amount receivable by the Group at
the year end amounted to $Nil (2008: $1,334,000).

(ii)  Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for conducting MMOB (i)
advertising business on KMB buses fitted with MMOB broadcasting
system. The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted
to $2,173,000 (2008: $5,574,000).
(iii) Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces on (iii)
certain transit vehicle shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH. The
amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to $389,000
(2008: $501,000).

Licence fee was paid for soliciting advertising business in respect of (iv)
the interior panels and other interior spaces inside the compartments

of KMB buses owned by a subsidiary of TIH. The amount payable by

the Group at the year end amounted to $Nil (2008: $Nil).

(iv)

BRKRAREARNAREZRRHBOM B R FIRME
BIHEEE RITBRBTREABA - REXR - KXEH
ERERIEABETIT(ZTT/\F « #% 1,334,000
TL) °
HABREARELRDZHEEERALETRDZHK
SESEGINTHBMBEATINER - REER - A%
EHEMNNREBEAEK 2,173,000 (=TT N\F : B
5,574,0007T) °
RTREFBREREESHAMBRARMEGNETE
BERREFTEEUIMNER - RER - AEEEA
) 3% I8 B 45 389,000 (= & & )\ 4F + # ¥ 501,000
JT) °

A BERERREBHNBARMEANNEELTERA
MESUREGERASUBETESERIANE
A-RER AEEEFHRBBABEZTT(ZTTN
F BT o
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32 Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes (continued):

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Licence fee was paid for marketing, displaying and maintaining
advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies of KMB buses
owned by subsidiaries of TIH. The amount payable by the Group at
the year end amounted to $Nil (2008: $Nil).

Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing
properties, audio and visual equipment, computer equipment and
software system, furniture and fixtures. The amount payable by the
Group at the year end amounted to $3,785,000 (2008: $Nil).

Management fee was paid to JCDecaux Texon Limited (“JCDecaux
Texon”), a fellow subsidiary of a minority shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, for the provision of media sales agency services in
relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux Texon at
the year end amounted to $3,170,000 (2008: $3,831,000).

32 B

FBAITHERR S @)

BIEE(AE) -

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

BHBRERTSEY  BRRAHRERUEHED
AfAANABELE SN BEENATRORR - %

K AREERORESESTITL(CTTNF B
5T -

AEEAHEME FERE  SKIBRUERS -
1%1%A&§§E§W§XLW% AIXNHEEER - RF
o AEBEEMNOKIARBKES785000T(ZTT)N
FBETT) .
AEARAREABELRE S HEHERERED
JCDecaux Texon Limited(HCDecaux Texon]) Z 4 %&
BE ZATRARNBMER DL BRENR RHE
DAl RER - J?§H?'JCDecaux Texon ) R I8 /3 78 1
3,170,000 T(=ZZFZ )\ 4F : #¥3,831,0007T) °

The Group entered into a contract with JCDecaux Texon for media (viii) ZNE[E 3t JCDecaux Texon it ARIE RS = HAZHE
sales agency services provided to the Group in relation to the bus X578 E TH RS HE R IEMRME JCDecaux Texon 7] 3L
shelters under the media sales business. The Group shall be entitled AR AEEABREBREBEBA @ SBHIRSEESRE
to a guaranteed income calculated based on the rates per panel and WEHEEHRESESROBMAMET - WERKEEL
the number of bus shelter panels. JCDecaux Texon shall pay any REZHERBADRRESTE - 25 7E B ICDecaux
shortfall if the actual income derived from the bus shelters is less Texon it o PAER + FEUICDecaux Texon HIFRIE A
than the guaranteed amount. The amount due from JCDecaux Texon 497,000 T(ZZ T )\F : FENRE 751,0007T) °
at the year end amounted to $497,000 (2008: amount due to of
$751,000).
The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Texon for the logistic (ix) ZA%@E 3t JCDecaux Texon Rt ARIE TR E=HA2HE
function provided to the Group in relation to the bus shelters under ¥1578E T R%R JCDecaux Texon ARG E
the media sales business. The amount due to JCDecaux Texon at the RER - BT JCDecaux Texon 83K IE /474 ¥ 41,000
year end amounted to $41,000 (2008: $204,000). TT(ZZZT)\F : B 204,0007T) ©
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts (x) FEEBASNM(BEME7TARENFRARAE
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of FHRERMEMBEELNTETREHSEENK
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: E)WT :
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Short-term employee benefits REES R 6,913 8,770
Post-employment benefits BEER 121 T 60 A
6,973 8,814
The loans to associate are unsecured, bearing interest ranging from (xi) BEARERASEEM  BRFEMEL31%E7.47% (=
5.31% p.a. to 7.47% p.a. (2008: 5.58% p.a. to 7.47% p.a.) and due TENF: FFEKE558%E7.47%)5t 2 R —F A
within one year. The interest receivable from associate at the year FH o RER - BB E RTINS RBBZT(ZTEN
end amounted to $Nil (2008: $11,059,000). The interest receivable 4 A% 11,059,0007T) ° Z Al FF AHH & A A= E’]F§
previously included in interest in associate was reclassified to KRB TR AEER IR E AR EEETATEN
amount due from investee included in other non-current financial EI(EW%E18)$¥ﬁ%§5ﬁ§fi\ﬁé\ﬁmituwu§bﬁ?ﬂ’]ﬁé’z\qﬁl
assets at the date when the Group ceased significant influence over WA BN EIFRIE ©
the investee (see note 18).
33 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 33 BEEM&EERAT]

At 31 December 2009, the Directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be KMB
Resources Limited and TIH respectively. KMB Resources
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands while TIH
is incorporated in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong. TIH
produces financial statements available for public use.

=
Re:

RZZEZNFT-A=+—RH EFRELE
MEEZET AR R&EERZERAR DB AKVMB
sources Limited &8 - KMB Resources Limited

REBRELBHEEMAL  MEBARERE

[
,T/ N\

MRS AT E LT o SRR BHEIA
REANLHE -



34 Accounting estimates and judgements

Note 15 contains information about the assumptions and risk

factors relating to goodwill impairment. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation

Audio and visual equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed at each balance sheet date
to identify indications that they may be impaired. Such
indications include physical damage of a fixed asset and
a decrease in the revenue derived from a fixed asset.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the fixed asset is estimated. The recoverable amount
of a fixed asset is based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
reasonable assumptions that represent management’s
best estimate of the range of economic conditions over
the remaining useful life of the asset.

Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale equity interest

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for the Group’s unlisted available-for-sale equity
interest carried at cost, the investment is reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the carrying amount of the unlisted
available-for-sale equity interest and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material, which require significant
judgement. Impairment losses for equity interest carried
at cost are not reversed. Any impairment losses on the
unlisted available-for-sale equity interest would affect
profit or loss in future years.

34 EiHEA A
i 15 A BB R EHBRRAREE -
T B TREE i E BAOR

(a)

(b)

(c)

e

FERBHIRBREGHAEAFHUNER
EHERE - ARESFRIEENAE
REH - MBEGABREERES - AKX
KR EFRXSIELAR -

EEEERE
AEBENEBEEERFEETEER TR
EFR - 2SR EETEENELE
BENEEEEMEENRERD - EFH
TANFERETR  AERERGFEEE
R AT B BER - B E B A R A R B
RERBEMNE ZEHEEREEES
ZEENEBERAMELRERTAENE
BRR - WEB TR ERFHETRER
24 -

I Em A A ERERRE

EEEAEBEZRAT BRI LT A H
ERBEEEFERER  AEERTESL
HFERSZEE WEEEEFEETME
BHRERE - MirEEMARBEE Bl
TR EBRERIE LT ERER
HESAGFARAKREESREWMITRTZE
R AZRBEUEREENRTTSEEE
PR EZREEE - WAREHERHE - %
PR D B 19 BRUHE B R (B RS 1R T T - 3F
ERAHEERENEMEESESSR
BRRAEFNATIHER
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PR M EE
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 34 gEHEET RAE )

136

(d) Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting for the
inability of the debtors to make required payments.
The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows
on the ageing of the accounts receivable balance and
debtors’ credit-worthiness. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by management when assessing
the credit worthiness of each individual customer and
the collectibility of each accounts receivable balance.
Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts would affect the result in future
years.

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating
segments, certain comparative figures have been adjusted
to conform to the current year’s presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
first time in 2009. Further details of these developments are
disclosed in note 2.

In 2008, directors’ remuneration amounted to $4,012,000
was included in “Other operating expenses”. Comparative
figure has been reclassified to “Staff expenditure” to conform
with the current year’'s presentation as management are of
the opinion that such presentation would be more appropriate
to account for the nature of this expense.
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35 Non-adjusting post balance sheet events 36 FREBEEEREEE
After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed a final EENEEOREFRERBKRE - 5
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 10. BRAMFE 10 EE -

36 Comparative figures 36 LLERHET
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37 Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2009 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements
but the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position:

37 Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ#éﬁzfzf%@gﬂiﬂ' A=+—
)4

LEFE M R R
AIREER R &
BHERMBBRETEEH  SEFHMIEE
BEETREE_ZTNF+_A=+—B1t
FERREMNER - HERZE - MARS
MR W BRAZFIER] - BRI R -

AEBIEFEZFER  MEAEZERER
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Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

REstiE

ERNER B

(BFEEHR)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations 1 July 2009

(BB B IMEER)DE I - FHESH ZEZNFEA—H

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 July 2009

(CEBGTERDE 27 RER] e RE VA HHE ZEZNFEA—H

Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement 1 July 2009
— Eligible hedged items

(CERGERDEIRNES 2T A - ERRIE — S BBHHIER ZEZNFLHA—H

HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009

BB (BB IEREENE 175 - WEBASEHHEE —ETNFEA—H

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
ZEZNF(EBMBREER DO SUE

1 July 2009 or

1 January 2010
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TR AR AT 2009 ANNUAL REPORT ZZENEFH

A

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED B%

f—y
w
~



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBEHRE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=1+—HLEFE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BEET T
RESULTS E4
Turnover - 196,361 148,412 134,268 176,485 191,105
Gain on disposal of media  Hi &8 G E k%
assets — — — 44,043 —
Other revenue and other  H AU A REA
net income Wzt 558 26,778 35,560 47,090 37,853 21,583
Total revenue WA 223,139 183,972 181,358 258,381 212,688
Profit from operations s Z R 36,842 42 943 38,325 44,309 22,693
Finance costs MiEER — (300) (1,706) (1,631) (2,385)
Impairment loss of other ~ HZEREI€ /b
non-current financial AEREREE
assets (9,801) — — — —
Gain on disposal of HEWB A F Mk
subsidiaries — — — 12,677 —
Gain on deemed disposal {8 {EH EBEZ A 7 ER
of partial interest in DR H
associate 177 — 10,243 — —
Share of (loss)/profit of iG]
associate (&18),/ &F (4,544) 14,141 12,538 6,387 12,129
Profit before taxation BRTE AT 2 A 22,674 56,784 59,400 61,742 32,437
Income tax FTiS AR (4,454) (7,062) (2,003) (7,353) (5,267)
Profit for the year AEEREF 18,220 49,722 57,397 54,389 27,170
Attributable to: 5T -
Equity shareholders of AARIEE
the Company 14,016 42,615 49,620 30,781 26,270
Minority interests DA RS 4,204 7,107 7,777 23,608 900
Profit for the year EEERF 18,220 49,722 57,397 54,389 27,170




At 31 December

R+=—A=+-—AH
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BETT BT T BT T B¥EFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Fixed assets EE&E 13,407 11,855 25,868 51,424 85,315
Media assets HEEEE 372 778 1,122 1,408 95,805
Goodwill Gk — = = — 12,487
Non-current prepayments  JER B) B 538 19,160 28,741 38,322 47902 62,610
Interest in associate BN Bl R 2 — 256,926 232,623 176,839 144,388
Other non-current HI R < rt
financial assets BE 231,664 — — — —
Deferred tax assets RIETIRE &= 3,802 6,227 9,560 8,449 7,076
Net current assets MENE EFE 541,335 552,215 583,822 585,820 484,281
Total assets less current  BELAERRE
liabilities =N 809,740 856,742 891,317 871,842 891,962
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIEE & (573) (2,295) (4,047) (8,537) (13,571)
Other unsecured loan Hibh R ER — — — — (15,423)
Net Assets EEFE 809,167 854,447 887,270 863,305 862,968
Capital and reserves BEAREES
Share capital f& 7 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves e 703,240 742,324 782,254 758,041 742,995
Total equity attributable to 2R 2 )RR &1
equity shareholders of [y
the Company 802,977 842,061 881,991 857,778 842,732
Minority interests DER RS 6,190 12,386 5,279 5,527 20,236
Total Equity QB 809,167 854,447 887,270 863,305 862,968

TiEI IR AR AT 2009 ANNUAL REPORT — B ZE H EF 4R

A

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED B%

—_
w
o



140

CORPORATE
DIRECTORY

AREH

Board of Directors €% &

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak — Chairman
PRIRE L AT : - =2

GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD
Ms Winnie NG — Deputy Chairman

hEsLZ+t - Fl+E

BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKIoD
Mr YUNG Wing Chung — Deputy Chairman
BoKBIEE - GIFE

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*

BRRBRELRFHL -

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE,
HonFACE, PDipCD

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*

FREFLTAFHL

GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT,
FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
SRR AL *

BBS, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang — Managing Director
FERE - FFBAHE

Mr Anthony NG

hACE gL E

BA, MBA (lvey)

Mr MAK Chun Keung

iR L&

Mr John Anthony MILLER

HEEEE

SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London)

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

A X SE A&

MA (Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

Company Secretary AR#E
Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung

W IE A

ACA, CPA, ACIS, ACS

Registrars fx =t iE

Hong Kong &%

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712 — 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
BERPREFBZLCERAA
EREERNERIBIFAEMPOT7E1712-1716=

Registrars iz =k &
Bermuda B#HE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road,
Pembroke HMOS8, Bermuda

Register of Members A% 5 4 fft

Book closed from 6 May 2010 to 12 May 2010

(both dates inclusive)

@ ENERA-—S - SFERAARNAE -2 —FF
FA+=A (BEMABELA)

Annual General Meeting l&EREF A S

Date & Time . 12 May 2010, 11:30 a.m.

Venue : Concord Room |, 8/F,,
Renaissance Harbour View Road,
Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

B A R i : CE-TFRAT A

FFE+—B=+5
I 2k : BEEBTEEEIR
EAEB S NESIEERE—
Dividends % &

Interim - Nil
Final (Proposed) : HK1.41 cents per share
 Hf 3

RE () . BREE1.4110
Registered Office st =&

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office # %155z

9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
ERBNEZRABTHREN

Telephone & i& (852) 2746 5200

Facsimile 2 & (852) 2744 7854
http://www.roadshow.com.hk/

Auditors tz&am

KPMG

8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road,
Central, Hong Kong
EER RN EEH

BB FIRETE10R A FAESE

* Independent Non-Executive Director

*EFROTEE



ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEBEZERAERAF
9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok

Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERNEHHABTHRE NS

This Annual Report is also available on our website:

RERFAEAD T Y EB B THE -
www.roadshow.com.hk

FSC www.fsc.org Cert no. SGS-COC-00211
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Council

© Mixed Sources
Product group from well-managed
forests, controlled sources and
recycled wood o fiber
6

TYPESETTING AND PRINTING: ELEGANCE FINANCE PRINTING SERVICES LIMITED

DESIGN: THE GRAPHIS COMPANY LIMITED
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